CITY OF WOBURN, MASSACHUSETTS

REPORTS ON FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015



CITY OF WOBURN, MASSACHUSETTS
REPORTS ON FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and

other matters based on an audit of financial statements performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards 1
Report on compliance with for each major federal program; report on internal

control over compliance; and report on the schedule of expenditures of federal

awards required by OMB circular A-133 3
Schedule of expenditures of federal awards 5
Notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards 6

Schedule of findings and questioned costs 7






Powers & Sullivan, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND W, . J—
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL SRR

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS "¢ 191
Wakefield, MA 01880

T. 781-914-1700

To the Honorable Mayor e
City of Woburn, Massachusetts b Ll s

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wobumn,
Massachusetts, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015 (except for the Woburn Contributory Retirement
System which is as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014), and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated March 15, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Woburn,
Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.






Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

March 15, 2016
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To the Honorable Mayor
City of Woburn, Massachusetts

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. The City
of Woburn, Massachusetts' major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City of Woburn, Massachusetts complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective

internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ internal control over






compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2015 (except for the Woburn Contributory Retirement System which is as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2014), and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City
of Woburn, Massachusetts' basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated March 15, 2016,
which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of
forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

%W,Mz.ce,

March 15, 2016






SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Federal
CFDA
Federal Grantor/Program Title Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
Passed through State Department
of Elementary and Secondary Education:
Non-Cash Assistance (Commodities):
National School Lunch Program.............ccoccoveviiiiiiiiiiinnnnn, 10.555 $ 133,942
Cash Assistance:
School Breakfast Program............coocooiiiiiiiiii i 10.553 83,843
National School Lunch Program.........cocoiviiiiviniceiciiins 10.555 671,899
TOTAL AGRICULTURE. ..ottt e e e e 889,684
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:
Passed through the Office of Community
Oriented Policing Services:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program........ 16.738 5,492
NATIONAL HIGHWAY TRAFFIC SAFETY ADMINISTRATION:
Passed through State Department
of Transportation:
National Priority Safety Program.............cocoooi i, 20.616 5,918
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:
Passed through State Department
of Elementary and Secondary Education:
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies..............c.oeeeeee 84.010 380,703
Special Education Grants to States (IDEA, PartB).................... 84.027 1,134,813
Special Education Preschool Grants...... ... 84.173 925
English Language Acquisition Grants..................coocnn 84,365 33,845
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants........................nns 84.367 128,058
ARRA - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund Race-to-the-Top
Incentive Grants, Recovery ACt.......coooiiiiiiiiiiiie e 84.395 29,565
Passed through State Department
of Early Education and Care:
Special Education Preschool Grants..............oooooien 84.173 42,591
TOTAL EDUCATION. .. oot it e 1,750,500
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:
Passed through Massachusetts Emergency
Management Agency:
Emergency Management Performance Grants........................ 97.042 18,435
TOTBL s s ot i =nsssben s o SRR B $ 2,670,029

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Year Ended June 30, 2015

Note 1 - Definition of Reporting Entity

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal financial
assistance programs of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts. All federal financial assistance received directly from
federal agencies as well as federal financial assistance passed through other governmental agencies is included
on the schedule.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts, are set forth below:

(a) Basis of Presentation - The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented on the
cash basis of accounting. Accordingly, grant revenues are recognized when received and expenditures when
paid.

(b) School Lunch Program (Cash Assistance) - Program expenditures represent federal reimbursement for meals
provided during the year.

(c) School Lunch Program (Non-Cash Assistance) - Program expenditures represent the value of donated foods
received during the fiscal year.

Note 3 — Program Clusters

In accordance with Subpart A §_.105 of OMB Circular No. A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non
Profit Organizations, certain programs have been clustered in determining major programs. The following
represents the clustered programs:

CFDA
Name of Cluster/Program Number
Child Nutrition Cluster
School Breakfast Program 10.553
National School Lunch Program 10.555
Special Education Cluster
Special Education Grants to States (IDEA, Part B) 84.027
Special Education Preschool Grants (IDEA Preschool) 84.173
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Year Ended June 30, 2015

A. Summary of Auditors’ Results

1,

8.

9.

The independent auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the City
of Woburn, Massachusetts.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the basic financial statements are reported in the Report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and On Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City of Woburn,
Massachusetts, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported in the
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133.

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the City of Woburn,
Massachusetts, expresses an unmodified opinion.

There were no audit findings relative to the major federal award programs, as defined in Section 520(a) of
OMB A-133, that are required to be reported for the City of Woburn, Massachusetts.

The programs tested as major programs include:

CFDA
Program Title Number
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010
Special Education Grants to States (IDEA, Part B) 84.027
Special Education Preschool Grants (IDEA Preschool) 84.173

The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

The City of Woburn, Massachusetts was not considered to be a low-risk auditee.

B. Findings and Questioned Costs — Financial Statements Audit

None

C. Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Program Audit

None

D. Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

None
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To the Honorable Mayor
City of Wobum, Massachusetts

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wobum, Massachusetts,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015 (except for the Woburn Contributory Retirement System which is as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2014), and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted aur
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures In the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financiat statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2015 (except for the Wobum
Contributory Retirement System which is as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014), and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Informaltion

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, econemic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of managemaent about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dateg March 186, 2016, on
our consideration of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting-and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report Is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

%M{—/%%' lee
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts {City), we offer readers of these financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2015. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented in this report. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are
expressed in whole dollars.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the authoritative standard setting body that provides
guidance on how to prepare financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). Users of these financial statements (such as investors and rating agencies) rely on the GASB 1o
establish consistent reporting standards for all governments in the United States. This consistent application is the
only way users (including citizens, the media, legislators and others} can assess the financial condition of one
government compared to others.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Woburn exceeded the liabilities at the close
of the most recent year by $141.3 million (net position).

+ Atthe close of the current year, the City's general fund reported an ending fund balance of $37.0 million.
Total fund batance represents 29% of total general fund expenditures.

» The City's total debt (short-term and long-term combined) decreased by $3.1 million during the year.

» The City's net other postemployment benefit (OPEB) liability increased by $5.5 million and totaled $47.1
million at year-end.

« The City contributed an additional $1.5 million to the OPEB trust fund, which totaled $3.1 million as of
June 30, 2015.

« In 2015, the City implemented GASB Statement #67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans; GASB
Statement #68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions; and GASB Statement #71 Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date. Financial statement changes
include the recognition of a $60.0 million net pension liability, pension expense and deferred outflows of
resources. The financial statements also recognized a revision of beginning net position to reflect the net
pension liability at the beginning of the year (see note 15). The notes to the basic financial statements
and the required supplementary information were expanded to include additional required schedules and
disclosures.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Woburn's basic financial
statements. These basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The government-wide financial
statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the City as a whole. The fund financial
statements focus an the individual components of the City government, reporting the City’s operations in more
detaif than the government-wide statements. Both presentations (government-wide and fund) allow the user to
address relevant questions, broaden the basis of comparison and enhance the City’s accountability. This report
also contains other required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of finances, in & manner similar to private-sector business.
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The statement of net position presents information on all assets and liabilities and deferred inflows/outflows of
resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the
most recent year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned
but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities include general govérnment, public safety, education, public works, human services, culture and
recreation, and interest. The business-type activities include the activities of water and sewer operations.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Woburn itself (known as the primary
government), but also a legally separate public employee retirement system. Financial information for this
component unit is reported separately within the fiduciary fund statements.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain contro! over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund statements focus on near-term inflows of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government's near-term financing reguirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the infarmation presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
govemnmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the govemnment's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Woburn adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The City accounts for its water and sewer activities as an enterprise fund.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary
funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.
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Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. The
City of Woburn's total assets exceeded total liabilities by $141.3 million at the close of 2015.

Net position of $172.9 million reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, land improvements,
buildings, vehicles, machinery and equipment, building improvements, and infrastructure) less any related debt
used to acquire those assets that are stili outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the investment in its capital
assets is reported net of its related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the governmental net position, $15.3 million, represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The balance of unrestricted net position has a year-end deficit of
'$46.9 million. The primary reason for this deficit balance is the recognition of other postemployment benefit and
net pension liabilities totaling $47.1 million and $60.0 million, respectively.

At the end of the current year, the City of Woburn is able to report positive balances in two out of three categories
of net position for the governmental activities and all three categories, both for the City as a whole, as well as for
its separate business-lype activities.

The governmental and business-type activities of the City are presenied below.

Governmental Activities

The City of Woburn's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities for governmental activities by
$99.0 million at the close of 2015.

2014
2015 {As revised)
Assets:
Current assets... s B 67,991,446 § 65,252,427
Noncurrent assets (exc!udlng capital) e reeba bbb ae ey bs 1,047,083 1,047,083
Capital assets not being depreciated... pr— . e 23,587,056 22 068,936
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreceatlon ...................... 160,231,166 159,730,861
Total ASSetS...iiiiirrirsnr it s s s ann 252,866,751 248,099,307
Deferred Outflow of Resources:
Deferred outflows related to pensions.........c. .o e cvvea s, 6,680,000 -
Liabilities:
Current liabilities (excluding debt)............ccccevcen e vec e 7,730,446 8,020,807
Noncurrent liabilities (excludmg debt) .................................... 110,822,391 97,542 442
Current debt... 4,881,721 3,320,219
NORCUITENE BEBL........1rerrsvrevrevrrors sres s ceeeererssoeeresss oo 37,081,746 40,383,467
Total Ilabllmes ....... T 160,516,304 149,246,935
Net Position:
Net investment in capital 3s5ets.......c.ccccie v i sve e v are e 142,543,156 138,862,748
RESIICIOU.. . oo e it e et e rreres rrs e e e e e s 15,334,740 15,727,698
Unrestriclen. ... e e e e e e {58,847,449) {55,738,074)
Total net Position. ... e e § 909030447 § 98,852,372
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2014
2015 (As revised)

Program Revenues:
Charges for Services...........ocov i e B 6,679,084 & 6,547,204
Qperating grants and contributions. ..........cvcoiiiiini i 22,035,318 28,616,562
- Capital grants and contributions.............cc...coveiiereiiierncenveeeen. 1,918,767 2,621,396
General Revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes,

netof tax refunds payable. ... e 91,324,323 88,791,408
L B L =S 1,211,747 899,786
Motor vehicle excise taxXes........coivveeiii e cveciie e reree e aae e, 6,644,944 5,788,059
HOEMOEI taX.....vverrceiircceireer e e e i v cnmareenan 3,003,361 2,688,033
MEalS 1), .. it e e re e ernras 973,492 888,076
Penalties and interest ontaxes............cccoveci i ivas i e vraer e 588,142 489,606
Nonrestricted grants............ccocoieiiniiiiininini 5,633,665 5,537,021
Unrestricted investment inComE.......cocoviiiiiiiniiin i e e enns 1,029,397 1,289,082
MISCRIIANEOUS. ... wrieeir vt eeier e e e ee v re e et e ransenens 51,088 83,710
TOtal FEVENUES. .. i iicramriraticiisirsietsssustrrssmssmenrnissonnne 141,093,328 144,261,643
Expenses:
General government..........ccoe i e v e ennaas 5,754,258 5,483,993
Public safety......cooiiri 29,454 208 27,697,116
BAUCAEION. ... vt iiriee i er s as s e s arr araseran errrraas 88,594,680 94,700,433
PUDIC WOTKS. ... s e e de e ere s v rn e eeeee s 11,954,236 12,174,816
8 1000 F BT =T = S S 1,856,236 1,753,846
Culture and recreation........ccocccvceviireree s v e e e aeenens 3,355,967 2,866,630
F3 (T L) U U SO U ST TRO PP 1,423,091 1,491,776
TOtal EXPENSES. ...ivauicmeeerinsiece e e aeaecnasm s rarmnsasennnran 142,392,766 146,168,610
Excess (Deficiency) before transfers......coicarrerrcusmsrnciissiranens (1,299,438) {1,906,967)
TANS e T T e, 1,477,513 1,541,686
Change in net position.......cccecicrvurvmmmerccinsmiicnrn e rasassenrsans 178,075 {365,281)
Net position at beginning of the year (as revised)}....cco-ccxeureneen 98,852,372 99,217,653
Net position at erid of the Year.........cccciicinimeerese . $ 99,030,447 3 98,852,372

The 2014 governmental activities net position has been revised to reflect the implementation of GASB Statement
#68 and the associated net pension liability totaling $51,404,000. As a result, previously reported net position of
$150,256,372 has been revised to $98,852,372.

Governmental expenses totaled $142.4 million of which $30.6 miltion (22%) was directly supported by program
revenues consisting of charges for services, operating and capital grants and contributions. General revenues
totaled $110.5 million, primarily coming from property taxes, motor vehicle excise taxes, hotel/motel taxes and
non-restricted state aid.

Governmental net position increased by $178,000 during the current year. The primary components of this
increase include $2.8 million from general fund budgetary results, $1.9 million from capital grants and $2.0 million
from the capitalization of capital outlay expenditures that were appropriated in the operating budget. These
increases were offset by a $5.5 million increase in the OPEB liability and the recognition of an additional $1.0
million of expense from the net pension liability and deferred outfiows of resources related to pensions.
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Business-type Activities

For the City’s business-type activities, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded fiabilities by $42.3
million at the close of 2015.

2014
2015 (As revised)
Assets:

Current assets... . rerreei e e 3 16,684,858 $ 18,895,704

Noncurrent assets (excludlng capltal) 531,026 615,884

Capital assets not being depreciated... 484,298 415,240

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreclatlon ...................... 54,487 322 53,018,283

Total ASSES...c.cneeriee e rncinrirtsrsne st s eamra r s aean 72,187,504 73,045,121
Deferred Qutflows of Resources:

Deferred outflows related to pensions............c.cocovvivciiennenn 102,000 -
Liabilities:

Current liabilities (excluding debt)............... oo 551,442 1,033,024

Noncurrent liabilities (excluding debt)................c.cooieiirr e 1,265,344 1,152,259

CUTENt dEBLl.......ovieeier it ir i erran s e e e mrr rer e e e 3,148,693 2,594,187

Noncurrent debt. ... 25,006,513 27,548,085

Total [1ahilities.....cosereairioirennimrnismmesiiees s ivessnronan 29,971,992 32,327,555
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets...............coo i, 30,344,777 28,474,727
Unrestricted.... ..o evr i e e e 11,972,735 12,242,839
Total net position....c.cccereeiiicnim s e $ 42,317,612 $ 40,717,566
Program Revenues:

Charges for SBIVICES.........viiiieiiie it e serees $ 19,831,414 § 19,704,485

Operating grants and contributions..............ovmienn 80,956 84,980

Capital grants and sontributions............ccov i 1,098,525 -

Total FEVENUES..c..onireeraeccrrarrcnrenis s asatssresnssararmrsasnsnas 21,010,895 19,789,485
Expenses:

WALET NG SEWET....vivvvrrarieeveereerenreiareenssteasimrrsssra s ssmeenns 17,033,436 16,845,302
Excess (Deficiency) before transfers........ccccviveeeveniiiniciininan, 3,077,459 2,944,183
TrANSTEES ... viinrieiiirrserrecnnnrnenmssnesnsessanararstnssnsusnsnsansnrrensnmsnnias (1,477,513) {1,5641,686)
Change in net position.........cocineinera e crenes TR = - 1,599,946 1,402,497
Net position at beginning of the year {as revised).........cceeeue.. 40,717,566 39,315,069
Net position at end of the year..........cccccvsieeimimieiiciniennacianen $ 42317512 $ 40,717,566

The 2014 business-type activities net position has been revised to reflect the implementation of GASB Statement
#58 and the associated net pension liability totaling $783,000. As a result, previously reported net position of
$41,500,566 has been revised to $40,717,566.

Business-type net position of $30.3 million (72%) represents the net investment in capital assets while $12.0
million (28%) is unrestricted.
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The water and sewer enterprise fund net position increased by $1.6 million in the current year. This increase is
primarily due to the receipt of a $1.1 million capital grant from the MWRA and an $868,000 excess of debt
principal payments, raised in the rates, over depreciation expense.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’'s govermmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
cutflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing financing requirernents.
In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available
for spending at the end of the year.

As of the end of the current year, governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $53.4 million.
This was comprised of the general fund totaling $37.0 million, the library trust funds totaling $7.2 million and
nonmajor fund balances totaling $9.2 million, respectively.

The general fund is the chief operating fund. At the end of the current year, unassigned fund balance of the
general fund was $28.2 million, while total fund balance was $37.0 million. As a measure of the general fund's
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 23% of the total general fund expenditures, while total fund
balance represents 29% of that same amount. Committed fund balance totals $7.3 million and consists of the
affordable housing stabilization fund totaling $3.0 million and unexpended capital articles totaling $4.3 million that
were carried forward to the subsequent year. Assigned fund balance totals $520,000 and consists of unexpended
appropriations that were encumbered to be expended in the subsequent year.

The general fund increased by $2.3 miilion, which is due to better than expected revenue collections totaling $4.5
million and unexpended appropriations totaling $785,000. These increases were offset by the use of $2.0 million
of free cash fo fund appropriations and the use of $1.0 million of overlay reserve to fund the OPEB trust fund.

The $1.8 million increase in public safety expense is mainly attributable to a $422,000 increase in fire department
overtime as well as increases in employee benefits such as health insurance, OPEB and pension benefits.

The $6.1 million decrease in education expense can be aftributed to a $7.3 million decrease in teacher pension
contributions made by the Commonwealth, on-behalf of the City, to the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement
System. This decrease was offset by increases in employee benefits such as health insurance, OPEB and
pension benefits.

The State highway grants fund recognized $2.3 million of capital grant revenue and incurred $2.3 million of road
improvement costs.

The library trust fund recognized $16,000 of contributions, $348,000 of investment income and $103,000 of
expenditures during the year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The $8.0 million {7%) increase between the original budget and the final amended budget was primarily due to
increases in appropriations for general government, public safety, human services, employee benefits, capital
outlay and debt service.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. In conjunction with the annual operating budget, the City annually prepares a capital budgét for

the upcoming year and a five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) that is used as a guide for future capital
expenditures.

The City's net investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2015,
amounts to $238.8 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
construction in progress, land improvements, buildings, buiiding improvements, vehicles, machinery and
equipment and infrastructure.

Current year additions for the governmental investment in capital assets totaled $6.4 miflion. $1.5 million of
additions relate to construction in progress for the HurldAWyman Elementary School feasibility study and road
resurfacing. An additional $1.7 million relates to land improvements for Leland Park and the Department of Public
Works yard, and $1.9 million relates to infrastructure additions for street resurfacing.

The $3.3 million in water and sewer additions are mainly attributable to infrastructure improvements that include
new water meters, cleaning and relining water lines and improvements to the Dix Road sewer station.

Debt Administration. The City maintains a Aa1 credit rating with Moody's Investors Services and continues to
maintain strong market access for both note and bond sales.

Outstanding long-term debt of the general government totaled $40.4 million, of which $27.3 million relates to
school projects, $7.9 million relates to land acquisition and $5.2 million relates to various other capital projects.

The water and sewer enterprise fund has $27.4 million of outstanding long-term debt, which is fully supported by
rates and does not rely on a general fund subsidy.

Short-term debt outstanding at year-end for the general government totaled $1.6 million of which $1.1 million is for
Leland Park and $500,000 is for the Hurld/Wyman Elementary School feasibility study. The water and sewer
enterprise fund outstanding short-term debt totaled $800,000 and was used to finance water infrastructure
improvements.

Please refer to the notes to the financial statements for further discussion of the major capital and debt activity.
Requests for Information

This financia! report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Woburn's finances for all those with
an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or

requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the City Auditor, City Hall, 10 Common Sfreet,
Woburn, Massachusetts 01801.
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 38, 2015
Primary Govermment
Govemnmmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents R . 37,300,826 % 7271118 § 44,571,845
INVESEMENS. .. oo e e e e eerrsen e 22,354 400 - 22,354 400
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles;
Real estate and personal property taxes.............. 48,843 - 48,643
Tax and ulility Hens..........ovvncere conene 2,905,331 87,175 2,892,506
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes, 805,452 - 805,452
Userfees...........oooivviveceianiinnes - 9,241,708 6,241,706
Departmental and other. ........c...covceevvvcnmneenrnnns 1,311,501 - 1,311,501
Intergovernmental....... oo e 3,265,293 84,868 3,350,151
NONCURRENT:
Receivables, net of sllowance for uncollectibles:
Real estate tax deferrals................ooevevc v 344,318 - 344 319
Intergovermmental. ... ... erans eeree 531,026 531,026
TaX FOrelOBUMBE. ...t i e e st sssas e e 702,764 . 702,764
Capital assets not being depreciated................o.coce0 23,507 056 484,298 24,081,354
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation........ 160,231,166 54,487,322 214,718,488
TOTAL ASSETS..cviiiiirierirniciteieiesisstines i s menassssnes 252,866,751 72 187,504 325,054,285
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions.... 8,680,000 102,000 6,762,000
LIABILITIES
CURRENT:
Warrants payable.............c...ovvoceeeeeeeeeeeeoe e 1,280,046 183,908 1,484,044
Accrued Payroll... ... rciinn i o s san e 960,962 - 060,962
Taxrefunds payahle,, 3464317 . 3,464,317
Accrued interest..._.. 281,852 306,444 588,266
Payroll withholdings. . 13,473 - 13,473
Abandoned Property..........cccociammnin e e ene e 139,798 - 138,788
Compensated absences... ... 1,580,000 61,000 1,651,000
Notes payable...............cvcuemiiviiiinsniins 4,600,000 800,000 2,400,000
Bonds payabla.........cccvviiirvrinrremeinn s e amnaes 3,281,721 2,348,603 5,630,414
NONCURRENT:
Compensated absences............coviiviiciiiiniesaneenenn 4,771,000 182,000 4,953,000
Other postemplaoyment benefiis,......co.cornrenivicisinien 46,853,391 183,344 47,136,735
Net pension Kability..........cooei 59,098,000 500,000 58,808,000
BONGS PAYADIE. .. .o\ i veviisrieie e iiten st s sensemssee e 37,081,748 25,006,513 62,088,258
TOTAL LIABILITIES. .. ..o e vt enne s nans s . 160,516,304 28,971 992 180,488,298
NET POSITION
Net invastment in capital 858ets...........ccovneviiirrmmnsrnann 142,543,156 30,344,777 172,887,933
Restricted for: '
DEbl BEMICE. .. e cieesries e e cee e e ey eeeen e ee i 315,373 - 315,373
Permanent funds:
EXPENGABIE. . .o...ovvvvive e enieaese s ane s, 7.434,872 . 7,434,672
Nonexpendable, ... ..., 2,905,001 ] 2,905,001
Gifts AN GraMS.... ...cveeeieceiiiinererice o en s remnserena 4,670,454 - 4 679,494
Unrestricted. ..o e e {58,847 448) 11,972,735 {46,674,714)
TOTAL NETPOSITION.......c.cce i miiiecicsesecnins s maaiaes § 29030447 % 42317512 § 141347959

See notes io basic financial statements.

City of Woburn, Massachusetts 13 Basic Financial Statements



STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Program Revenuss

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Net (Expense)
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary Government;
Governmental Activilies:
General government................ $ 5754258 % 887,190 % €08647 $ 1720 §% {4,246,701)
Publicsafety..........ccooccviiennnn. 29,454,298 3,243,450 1,799,402 88,000 (24,323 A48)
Education............cecevveinnnnn, 88,594,680 2,242 853 19,262,713 337,858 (66,761,258)
Public works........... e e 11,954,236 207,900 28,805 1,481,191 (10,236,340)
Human services................ee... 1,856,236 89,594 74,997 - {1,691,645)
Cuiture and recreation.............. 3,355,067 8,097 270,754 - (3,077,1186)
Interest. ...oove v 1,423,091 - - - (1,423,081)
Total Governmental Activities... 142,392,766 6,679,084 22,035,318 1,918,767 (111,759,597}
Business-Type Aclivilies:
Water and Sewer.........cc.ccovennns 17,933,436 19,831,414 80,956 1,088,525 3,077,458
Total Primary Government...... $ 160326202 $ 26510488 § 22116274 § 3,017,202 §_ {108,682,138)
See notes to basic financial statements, {Continued)
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES {Continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities. Total
Changes Iin net position:
Net {expense) revenue from previous page............. $  {(111,759,697) $ 3077459 $  (108,682,138)
General revenues: '
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds payable...................ccoceen. 91,324,323 - 91,324,323
Tax liens... 1,211,747 - 1,211,747
Motor vehlcle excise taxes 6,644,944 - 6,644,944
Hotel/motel tax............cooeviiii e, 3,003,361 - 3,003,361
Meals fax... 873,492 - 973,402
Penailties and lnterest on taxes ......................... 588,142 - 588,142
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs... 5,633,665 E 5,633,665
Unrestricted mvestment income.. . 1,029,397 - 1,028,397
Miscellaneous. .. .......coiiiiiviie e 51,088 - 51,088
Transfers, 0Bl ... .....ccoevviiiiee it e 1,477,513 {1,477,513) -
Total general revenues and transfers..................... 111,937,672 {1,477,513) 110,460,169
Change in net position...............ccoeiivinnieenens 178,075 1,599,946 1,778,021
Net Position:
Beginning of year, as revised............cocvevvneenennn 98,852,372 40,717,566 139,569,938
End Of Year. ..ot $ 99,030,447 $ 42317512 % 141,347,959
See notes to basic financial statements. {Concluded)
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2015
State Library Nonmajor Total
Highway Trust Governmental Governmental
General Granis Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents.................... . $ 27,540,782 § - $§ 833413 § 8,926,631 % 37,300,826
INVestMENS. . .occoes veiiviii i e e 14,152,838 - 6,346,071 1,855,491 22,354,400
Receivables, net of uncollectibles:
Real estate and personal property taxes.. 48 643 . - - 48,643
Real estate tax deferrais...................... - 344 319 . - - 344,318
TaX NS ..vcceeirrreernnaenirree s vrssr e nane 2,905,331 - - - 2,905,331
Motor vehicle and ofher excise taxes. ..... 805,452 - - - 805,452
Deparmental and other....................... 18,201 - - 1,283,300 1,311,501
Intergovernmental..........cccoeveeiivinennenes. - 2,790,586 - A74707 3,265,293
Tax foreclosures.......cooeevvevveriens P S 702,764 - B - 702,764
Due fromi other funds...............cccv i venveenen. 258,926 - - - 258,926
TOTALASSETS. oo e vt 48,777,256 2,790,586 7,179,454 12,560,129 68,297 455
LIABILITIES
Warrants payable............eocviivrve i 353,485 889,806 . 36,755 1,280,046
Accrued PayToll.......ccveeein e 960,962 - - - 960,962
Tax refunds payable............................. 3,464,317 . - - 3,464,317
Payroll withholdings.......................... - 13,473 - - - 13473
Abandoned propenty..........cooeevieieeiiineiiinne 139,796 - . - 139,796
Duetoother funds.............oovveviinemrnrninnens - 258,926 - - 258,926
Notes payable..................ccccoiiiiviiviniaes - - - 1,600,000 1,600,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES. oo vee v e e imvrrenscerenrerrane 4,932,033 1,148,732 - 1,636,755 7,717,520
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues..............cocvvun e 4,824,703 1,641,854 - 1,759,563 - 8,226,120
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable..........ccovievnrrivrceeceeieeeeens - - - 2,905,001 2,905,001
Restricted. ..o i e e - . 7,179,484 6,248,810 13,428,204
7,252,496 - B - 7,252 496
Assigned.............. ot et ntanetnenrenar—ans 519,666 B - - 510,666
Unassigned........vivrivrrrmmrarorcenrarnsisrensine 29,248,358 - - - 29,248,358
TOTAL FUND BALANCES. ........ccocoeviivinne 37,020,520 - 7,179,484 9,153,811 53,353,815

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES....... 5 46777256 $ 2790586 § 7,172,484 § 12,550,129 % 68,297,455

See notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Total gaovernmental fund balanCes...... ... it e et e e et e e $ 63,353,815

Capital assets (net) used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are notreportedinthe funds.... .. .. .. i, 183,828,222

Accounts receivable are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are unavailable inthe funds... ..................iceeveee . 8,226,120

Certain changes in the net pension liabiiity are required to be included in pension
expense over future periods. These changes are reported as deferred outflows of
resources or {deferred inflows of resources) related to pensions........................... 6,680,000

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in governmental funds interest is not reported until due.......................... {281,852)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds:

Bonds Payable... ... ... oocvmee e e e e s e e e s (80,363,487)
COMPENSalEd AD SN, .. oot vt e retere it i e e e sir s mee van easn e e teaes eenrs sarne (6,361,000)
Net pension Fability..........coorr e v e e e s e e e (99,098,000)
Other postemployment benefits.....................co e e e (46,953,391)
Net effect of reporting long-term labilities...... ....co v iei e (152,775,858)
Net position of governmental ctiVIIES... ... .. ... .ovvescierr oo e er ver e e crrverar sremre st aarens $ 99,030,447

See notes fo basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
State Library Nonmajor Total
Highway Trust Govemmental Gavernmental
General Grants Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES: '
Real estate and personal property taxes,
netoftaxrefunds...........coovveevevennnoreneen.. § 91,705,008 § - 8 - $ -8 €1,705,008
T NS ..cceceveeeieerei e e eerr e ens 1,323,914 - . 1,323,914
Motor vehicle excise taxes...................... ... 8,277,641 - - - 6,277,641
Hotel/motel tax.......cooovveveer e e rearerceeees 3,003,361 - - - 3,003,361
Meals taX... e ie e, 973,482 - - - 073,402
Penalties and interest on taxes...............c....... 588,142 - - - 588,142
Intergovernmental. .......o.co e i, 20,690,705 2,304,461 5,826,934 28,822,100
Departmental and other.......oeeeiviceiieericieininn 2,369,124 - - 6,560,776 8,829,900
Contibubions.......ccc et v e e e e s 75,000 15,814 50,250 141,064
INvestment iNCOME.....c.c.cvee i vrrarerrern s ernains 524,182 - 348,252 114,634 987,068
TOTALREVENUES.........cooeeeeens 127,530,569 2,304,461 364,086 12,552,594 142,751,690
EXPENDITURES;
Current:
General government..........cceeeemicieiininnane. 3,417,029 - - 103,370 3,520,399
Public safety.......ccoccvie et ot cciniiniien 16,749,103 - - 2,608,830 19,358,033
EdUEBHON. ... oo vecereiie e 55,259,016 - - 6,304,295 61,564,211
Public works........ . 8,304,858 2,304,461 . 215,673 10,824,993
Human services......... 1,403,954 - - 104,934 1,508,888
Culture and recreation...............cocueeeeeene. 1,846,508 . 102,952 1,488,688 3,438,148
Pension benefits...........ccverviiiinicies 11,132,800 . - - 11,132,890
Employee benefits...........ocovemviiniicienneee. 10,427 439 - . 19,427,439
State and county charges........cccccecveevvarerieeen 3,454,805 - - - 3,454,805
Capital outlay..........ccoceeimiiiiiiimciinin e, 2,589,664 . - 2,599,664
Debt service:
Principal.........cccoiiiiieee e s RERER: 3,245,000 . - - 3,245,000
Interest..........ooevmiee v, 1,435,214 - - - 1,435,214
TOTAL EXPEND|TURES..........ccevcane 128,276,382 2,304 461 102,952 10,826,720 141,510,585
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY} OF REVENUES
OVER {(UNDER) EXPENDITURES.........cc.u... {745,813) - 261,114 1,725,804 1,241,105
OTHER FINANGCING SOURCES {USES);
Transfers M.......ov. ccenisiemsiieecreent s crn i e 5,046,189 - 1,998,007 7,044,196
Transfers out.......ocveeiiecnceeceniecee ez eee e {1,998,007) - - (3,568,676) (5,566,683)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)....covcvirrecenriicnnnn, 3,048,182 - (1,670,669) 1,477,513
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........cooeeeein. 2,302,369 261,114 155,135 2,718,618
FUND BALANGCES AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR. ..ottt s snesissasnva oo e 34,718,151 - 6,918,370 8,998,676 50,635,197
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR................ $ 37,020520 % - § 7,79484 § 9,153,811 & 53,353,815

See notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONGILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds...........ccovevvvrcivvecveer v cresier s § 2718618

Governmental funds report capital cutlays as expenditures, However, in the
Staternent of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital OUHIAY.......c.coiiiiiiiie e e e e s s 6,416,235
DEpreciation EXDBNSE..........iiiiiciicrt v iereesterrereeeraet s itnin roeeessabers en s s e rmans eres {4,367 668)
Net effect of reporting capital 858ets........covovvveiiiiiis it e 2,058,566

The net effect of varicus miscellanecus transactions involving capital assets
{iLe., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assels.............ccocvevrevivnnnere. (30,141)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are unavailable in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various
types of accounts receivable (i.e., real estate and personal property, motor
vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the two statements. This amount represents
the net change in unavailable FEVENUE..............viciiieeeiierrer e ss s ceras s seeras savraeeses (1,658,362)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial
resources to govemmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is
firstissued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
Statement of Activities.

Debt service principal PaYMEeNtS... ..o it e et e e s 3,245,000

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do net require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in the governmental funds.

Net change in compensated absences accrual........c....c..veevvuervvverveneriieeereinsresans 263,000
Net change in accrued inferest on long-termdebl.........cooiev i e, 87,343
Net change in-net pension liability..............cccveiiiciii e e e (7,684,000)
Net change in deferred outflowd(inflow) of resources related to pensions................ 6,680,000
Net change in other postemployment benefit...............ccooivieieiicrii s {5,491,945)
Net effect of recording long-term fiabilities. ... ceniennc e (6.155,606)
Change in net position of governmental activities.............coccoooir i i et s $ 178,075

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPR!ETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITICN

JUNE 30, 2015

Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water and Sewer
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents... e R Tl 7271118
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollect:bles
WHility liens.. 87,175
User fees........ 9,241,706
Intergovemmenlal 84,858

Total cument BSEELS.........c.ocvveiiii i s s s et 16,684,658

NONCURRENT:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Intergovernmental... 531,026
Capital assets not belng depreciated . 484,298
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation............ccevr i 54,487,322

Total noncurrent assels..........c.cvv v inras TN T R 55,502,646
O T AL ASSET S . ivererverrrrrarestarmrereterarsiens s unnstusebratsnsasnitiaieisrens tiannns 72,187,504

DEFERRED DUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outfiows of resources related {0 pENSIONS....cc.ovvivevirmrcecmenceniinans 102,000

LIABILITIES

CURRENT:
WAITANS PAYADIB. .. cuvrre oo reerisseimiesirerrimnats e rrirrrs mrs permee e s s en e 183,998
Accrued interest e e g e 306,444
Compensated absenoes_......cccui i inn s e e s 61,000
Notes payabla................ 800,000
Bonds PAYaDIE... ...ccvcmiiiiiii i e ren e e 2,348,693

Total cument HabHHeS........c.coccveveirecvare s v s st ans e 3,700,135

NONCURRENT:
Compensated ADEBNTES........ccuiveimuereesreiniarsimrmremmrare s bt 182,600
Other postemployment benefits 183,344
Net pension liability.............cc.ooveriiiinninnnn 900,000
Bonds payable.............. 25,006,513

Total noncurrent EbIHES... v vreve et s e e 26,271,857
TOTAL LIABILITIES ..ot eeeeerrieransneanrarmmretcasmssnssin s srnnss ver sesrenens seeyenass am 29,871,992
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets............ i erarerecrtE sk paane s bn 30,344,777
UNTESIACIBA. ...eevveiiciirierervrcrrnes cerr s cnesas sasacbbs s nan srsesars saanrrarrannmrenne 11,972,735

TOTAL NET POSITION. ... ...oviieiiraeeneerioscectes st cussnsanesieatsssnasaranassssesntoons 42,317,612

See notes 1o basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POS|TION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds
Water and Sewer
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges fOr SEIVICES. ...ee et e e sttt e e e $ 18,645,623
Uy IeNS. o e e e e e e 1,185,791
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES.......c i e 19,831,414
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of services and administration.............coooeoicv e e i, 2,893,360
MWWRA ASSESSIMENE. .. .ot et e it it s e e e reaarnvaes 12,568,264
Depreciation... ... oo vevin e e e ca e e 1,642,590
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ..uvvevvvee e cveeieceeieeeaar e 17,104,214
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).....ccoceiiteeiieei e e, 2,727,200
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Jnterest eXPenSE.. .o e (829,222)
Intergovernmental.................... 1,179,481
TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET......ceniiee i eeerevn s 350,259
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
TRANSFERS. .. ..o s e ae s cae e 3,077,459
TRANSFERS:
TrANSIOrS OUL... .. i e e e e e {1,477,513)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION. ...t eer e eee e 1,509,946
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS REVISED............... 40,717,566
NET POSITIONATEND OF YEAR. .....ooieiee e et et vennea o 42,317 512

See noles to basic financial statements.

City of Woburn, Massachusetts 21

Basic Financial Statements



PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM O NG ACTIVITIES:

_Receipts from CUSIOMErS B8N0 USEIS .. .......cucviiiiineiirnrrneiiesnrmen ssmerrar e sesassaseennses

Payments to vendors. ..o
Payments to employees......cc..erevenrennes .

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the issuance of bonds and NOES.....ovr e ieccciiiiie it e e
Capital grants received... =+ mlEze et s e s A s e

Acquisition and construchon ol caplta! assels

Disposition of capital assets...
Principal payments on bonds e —
LT T B o PN
NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES......c.ccovrreveeenenn.
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.....ccccocreeennsimncnsinnnerannen
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGIMNNING OF YEAR....c..istireimmassemresimnnsinen

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.......covivvirmievmrirseesmrrenee i inscan

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss)...

Adjustments to reconcile operalmg incorne (loss) to net

cash from operating activities:

Depreciation... ereie ESET[EE s

Deferred (uutﬂows)f nﬂows of resources related to penslons
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Y TIBIIS. . et eeesmmaererernaer veamebrar vaydns bonme ses e eb ba bbb st Rt R T bs T en abm nr e eras s ananas
User fees...
Warranis payable T T e
Accrued compensated absences
Net pension liabllity,..
Other poslemploymenl beneﬁts

Total adjustments........ccoiiiiriic e e b s s

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES.........ccciininriii i e

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Intergovernmental Subsidy. .....cc.o i

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water ang Sewsr

o 19,321,098

{15,080,320)
(825,489)

3,415,289

(1,477,513}

1,166,175
1,098,525
(3,197,782)
17,905
(2,510,237)
{715,227)

(4,141,441)
{2,203,665)
9,474,784

7,271,418

- § 271,

. $ 2,727,200

1,642,590
(102,000
12,990
(523,306)
{456,270}

5,000
117,000

{7,915}
688,089

$ 3,415,280

SA
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Pension
Trust Fund Private
(as of December 31, OPEB Purpose Agency
2014) Trust Fund. Trust Funds Funds

ASSETS
CURRENT:

Cash and cash equivalents.........ooooeeiiiecice s $ 2,118,887 § 3,070,278 § 76708 3 893,901

Investments 127,236,053 - . -

interest and dividends 91,266 - - -

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

intergovernmental...........cooovie v inein e, 18,368 - - -

TOTAL ASSETS........... rorerraanas b et e rrm v baraas s 129,464,584 3,070,278 . 76,708 893,901
LIABILITIES

Warrants payable.......coeveiviiiveeie i 121,987 - 120 5,480

Liabilities due depositors........c..coiiecccncriciinnvirnnnn, - - - 888.411
TOTAL LIABILITIES..... i O, 121,887 - 120 £93,901
NET POSITION

Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes.... $ 129,342,597 § 3,070,278 % 76588 §

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:

EMPIOYeL. ..o e e
Dl OY B, et it e e e e e e e e

Total contiibULIONS. .. ....cv v i e i e e v e e

Net investment income (loss):

Net change in fair value of investments............... oo,
L == ROV

Total investment income (lass)... ... covevviiiienicciiesnirenanns
Less: investment eXpense..........ocvvviei v vin e e
Net investment income (10Ss)...... ... .o i
Intergovernmental.........ccocoi v e e
Transfers from other systems..............oco i e

TOTAL ADDITIONS......oe i vt i e

DEDUCTIONS:

Administration...............

Transfers fo other systems. ... ...
Retirement benefits and refunds......... oo oo s e e
Educational scholarships.......c.ccc oo vercviioen e e e
MISCRIlANBOUS. .. ..o vt v cve i e res i can s e can s e saraan sre s
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS. ... e e s s rea war e
CHANGE IN NET POSITION... ...oie e ieeveceviavetn v rnvnm e

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.........coovvnvreenire e

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR.........oocvveeen

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Pension
Trust Fund

{as of December 31,

2014)

OPEB
Trust Fund

Private
Purpose
Trust Funds

2,818,503

$ 5500,350 %

1,500,000

8,327,943

1,500,000

5,471,350
2,972,534

40,686

8,443,884

(980,542)

40,686

(3,388)

7,463,342

37,287

219,743

176,074

513,218

16,524,246

1,713,371

356,507
457 465
11,623,361

19,889

120

12,457,222

120

4,067,024

126,275,573

1,713,371

1,356,907

(113)

76,701

................... $ 129,342,597

3,070,278

76,588
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements . Year Ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying basic financial statements of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts (City) have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the recognized standard-setting body for establishing

governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant accounting policies are described
herein.

A. Reporting Entity

The City is 2 municipal corporation that is govemed by an elected Mayor and City Council (Council). As required
by GAAP, these basic financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the
City is considered to be financially accountable.

For financial reporting purposes, the City has included all funds, organizations, agencies, boards, commissions
and institutions. The City has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable
as well as other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that
exclusion would cause the basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. As required by GAAP,
these basic financial statements present the City (primary government} and its component units. One entity has
been included as a component unit in the reporting entity, because of the significance of its operationa! and/or
financial relationship.

Component Unit Presented as a Fiduciary Fund — The following component unit is presented as a Fiduciary Fund

of the primary government due to the nature and significance of retationship between the City and the component
unit.

The Woburn Contributory Retirement System (System) was established to provide retirement benefits to City
employees, the Woburn Housing Authority employees, and their beneficiaries. The System is governed by a five-
member board comprised of the City Auditor (ex-officio), two members elected by the System's participants, one
member appointed by the Mayor and one member appointed by the Board members. The System is presented
using the accrual basis of accounting and is reported as a pension trust fund in the fiduciary fund financial
statements.

The System did not issue a separate audited financial statement. The System issues a publicly available un-
audited financial report in accordance with guidelines established by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’
(Commonwealth) Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC). That report may be
ohtained by contacting the System located at 10 Commen Street, Woburn, Massachusetts 01801.

Joint Ventures

A joint venture is an organization {resuiting from a contractual arrangement) that is owned, operated or governed
by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control in which the participants
retain an ongoing financial interest or ongoing financial responsibility. Joint control means that no single
participant has the ability to unilaterally control the fihancial or operating policies of the joint venture.

The City has entered into a joint venture with the Cities of Winthrop, Chelsea, Malden, and Revere and the Towns
of Melrose, North Reading, Reading, Saugus, Stoneham, Wakefield and Winchester to pool resources and share
the costs, risks and rewards of providing vocational education through the Northeast Metropolitan Regional
Vocational School District (NMRS). The City's assessment for 2015 was $1,426,424. Stand-alone financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2015, are available at Northeast Metropolitan Regional Vocational School
District, 100 Hemlock Road, Wakefield, Massachusetts 01880.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2015

B. Gavernment-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., statement of net position and the statement of changes in net
position) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component
units. Governmenial activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-fype activities, which are supported primarily by user fees and charges,

Fund Financial Statemenis

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Maijor individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns In the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column.

Major Fund Criteria
Major funds must be reported if the following criteria are met:

« Iftotal assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of an individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least
10 percent of the corresponding element (assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows or resources, etc.) for all funds of that category or type (total governmental
or total enterprise funds), and

o If the total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund are at
least 5 percent of the corresponding element for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

Additionally, any other governmental or enterprise fund that management believes is particuiarly significant to the
basic financial statements may be reported as a major fund.

Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and_Financial Statement Presentation

Governrnenf-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibifity
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a particular function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include the following:
» Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment.
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o Basic Financial Year Ended June 30, 2019

« Grants and contributions restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular function or
segment.

» Grants and contributions restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a particular function or
segment.

Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.

For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial
statements. However, the effect of interfund services provided and used between functions is not eliminated as
the elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the functions
affected.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when susceptible to accrual {i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of
the transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current pericd or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expectad to be
liquidated with current expendable available resources.

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60 days after
year-end. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become measurable
and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitiements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other
grant requirements are met.

The following major governmental funds are reported:

The general fund is the primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources, except those that
are required to be accounted for in another fund. Stabilization fund is also classified as part of the genera!l fund.

The State highway grants fund is used to account for and report costs incurred for the construction and
reconstruction of City owned roadways. Costs charged to the fund are subject to reimbursement by the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

The library trust fund is used to account for gifts, bequests and contributions held for which only earnings may be
expended for purposes specified by the donor in relation to fibrary activities.

The nonmajor governmental funds consist of special revenue, debt service, capital project and permanent funds
that are aggregated and presented in the nonmajor governmentaf funds column on the govemmental funds
financial statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than permanent funds or capital projects,
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements . Year Ended June 30, 2015

The debt service fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.

The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or

assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, inciuding the acqguisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets of the governmental funds.

The permanent fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are legally restricted to the extent
that only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the governmental programs.

Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the
proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reparted as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The City's proprietary funds include the water and sewer enterprise fund which is used to account for the water
and sewer activities,

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the fiow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the governmenta! programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

The pension trust fund is used to account for the activities of the System, which accumulates resources to provide
pension benefits to eligible retirees and their beneficiaries.

The other postemployment benefit frust fund accumulates resources to provide funding for future OPEB {(other
postemployment benefits} liabilities.

The private-purpose frust fund is used to account for trust arrangements, other than those properly reported in the
pension trust fund or permanent fund, under which principal and investment income exclusively benefit
individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

The agency fund is used to account for assets held in a purely custodial capacity.

D. Cash and investments

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an origina! maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Investments are carried at fair value.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements _Year Ended June 30, 2015

E. Accounts Recei\jable
Governmeni-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide financial statements
and the proprietary funds and fiduciary funds financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of
accounting. The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the governmental funds
financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Real Estate, Personal Property Taxes, Tax Liens and Tax Foreclosures

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1 of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessors for 100% of the estimated fair market value, Taxes
are due on August 1%, November 1%, February 1% and May 1% and are subject to penalties and interest if they are

not paid by the respective due date. Real estate and personal property taxes levied are recorded as receivables
in the year of the levy.

Real estate tax liens are imposed in October of each year on delinquent properties and are recorded as
receivables in the year they are processed. Real estate tax liens may be subject to foreclosure if the tax liens are
not paid in accordance with the period required by the law (M.G.L. Ch.60, §50). Foreclosure proceedings are
processed by the Treasurer or other tax lien custodian. Foreclosed properties can then be sold through
advertised public auction or held for use by the City.

Real estate receivables are secured via the tax lien process and are considered 100% collectible. Accordingly,
an allowance for uncollectibles is not reported.

Personal property taxes cannot be secured through the lien process. The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated
based on historical trends and specific account analysis,

Motor VVehicle and Other Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered and are recorded as receivables in
the year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles registered and the
fair values of those vehicles. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of
value.

The allowance for uncollectibles is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis.
Water and Sewer User Fees

User fees for residential and small commercial users are levied semi-annually while the top 20 commercial users
are levied monthly. Residential user fees are based on flat rates while commercial user fees are based on
individual meter readings. All user fees are subject to penalties and interest if they are not paid by the respective
due date. Unbllled user fees are estimated at year-end and are recorded as revenue in the current period. Water
and sewer liens are processed in December of every year and included as a lien on the property owner's tax bill.
Water and sewer fees and liens are recorded as receivables in the year of the levy.

Since the receivables are secured via the lien process, these accounts are considered 100% coliectible and
therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.
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Departmental and Other

Departmental and other receivables consist primarily of ambulance charges and are recorded as receivables in
the year accrued. The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated based on historical trends and specific account
analysis.

Intergovernmental

Various feéderal and state grants for operating and capital purposes are applied for and received annually. For
non-expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met. For expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded when the qualifying
expenditures are incurred and all other grant requirements are met.

These receivables are considered 100% coliectible and therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.

F. Inventories
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Inventories are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material in total to the
government-wide and fund financial statements, and therefore are not reported.

G. Capital Assets

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery and
equipment, and infrastructure (e.g., roads, water mains, sewer mains, and similar items), are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activity column of the government-wide financial statements, and the
proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost, or at estimated historical
cost, if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market
value at the date of donation. Except for the capital assets of the governmental activities column in the
government-wide financial statements, construction period interest is capitalized on constructed capital assets.

All purchases and construction costs in excess of state recommended capitalization thresholds are capitalized at
the date of acquisition or construction, respectively, with expected useful lives of greater than one year.

Capital assets (excluding land and construction in progress) are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Estimated
Useful
Life
Capital Asset Type {in years)
Land improvements.........cccocovieiiiiiincccnnn 20
Buildings......cc.ccoviiri i 40
Building improvements............ccceviviianne 20
Vehicles.......cooooviviir e 5-10
Machinery and equipment...................c.... 5-10
Infrastructure..........coco e cii i 10-40
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The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset
fives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are capitalized.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements
Capital asset costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the year of the purchase.

H. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Position)

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred oulflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that appliés to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has reported deferred outflows of resources related to
pensions in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue)
until that time. The City has no elements that qualify for reporting as deferred inflows of resources.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

In addition to liabilities, the governmental funds balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents assets that have been recorded in the govérnmental fund financial statements but the revenue is not
available and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until it becomes available. The City
has reported unavailable revenues from property taxes as deferred infiows of resources in this category.

I [nterfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/sefler nature between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding between the
govemnmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net position as *internal
balances.”

Fund Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as “Due from other funds”
or “Due to other funds” on the balance sheet.

J. Interfund Transfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanently reallocated between and within funds. These
transactions are reported as transfers in and transfers out.

City of Woburn, Massachusetts 31 Basic Financial Statements



sic Finangi Year Ended June 30, 2015

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transfers between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the governmental activities in the
statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the statement of activities as "Transfers, net.”

Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as
transfers in and transfers out.

K. Net position and Fund Equity

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Position)

Net position reported as “net investment in capital assets” includes capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, less the principal balance of outstanding debt used to acquire capital assets. Unspent proceeds of
capital related debt are not considered to be capital assets.

Net position is reported as restricted when amounts are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by
outside parties for a specific future use.

Net position has been “restricted for” the following:

“Debt service” represents amounts used to reduce the amount of tax levy raised to pay principal and interest on
long-term debt.

“Permanent funds - expendable” represents the amount of realized and unrealized investment eamings of donor
restricted trusts. The restrictions and trustee policies only allows the trustees to approve spending of the realized
investment earnings.

*Permanent funds - nonexpendable” represents the endowment portion of donor restricted trusts that support
governmental programs.

"Gifts and grants” represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties and consists primarily of state and
federal grants.

Sometimes the City will fund outiays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.qg., restricted bond or grant
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted — net position and
unrestricted — net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the City's policy to
consider restricted — net position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net position is applied.

Fund Financial Statements (Fund Balances)
Governmental fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned

based on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which
amounts in those funds ¢an be spent.
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The governmental fund balance classifications are as follows:

“Nonspendable” fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form or they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

“Restricted” fund baiance includes amounts subject to constraints piaced on the use of resources that are either
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or that are
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legis!ation.

"Committed” fund balance includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority. A vote of the City
Council is the highest level of decision making authority that can commit funds for a specific purpose. Once
voted, the limitation imposed by the vote remains in place until the funds are used for their intended purpose ora
vote is taken to rescind the commitment.

“Assigned” fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City Council has by resolution authorized the City Auditor
to assign fund balance. The City Council may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund
batlance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year's budget. Unlike
commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not
normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment.

"Unassigned” fund balance includes the residual classification for the general fund. This classification represents
fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned
to specific purposes within the general fund.

The City’s spending policy is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned and
unassigned fund balance. Most governmental funds are designated for one purpose at the time of their creation.
Therefore, any expenditure from the fund will be aliocated to the applicable fund balance classifications in the
order of the aforementioned spending policy. The general fund and certain other funds may have more than one
purpose.

L. Long-term Debt

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statement of net position.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements
The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond premiums are reported as

other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general government expenditures.
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M. Investment Income

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and nonmajor governmental funds is
legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL).

Investment income derived from the proprietary funds is retained by the proprietary funds.

N. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of both the
Woburn Contributory Retirement System and the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System and additions
to/deductions from the Systems fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by the Systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value,

O. Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.
Govemmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources, are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities.

P. Use of Estimates

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets

and liabilities at the date of the basic financia! statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

Q. Total Column

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.

Fund Financial Statements

The total column on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in this
column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.
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R. Appropriation and Fund Deficits

Several individual fund deficits exist at June 30, 2015, in the special revenue and capital project funds. These
deficits will be funded by grants, bond proceeds, departmental revenues and available fund balance, Actual
expenditures and encumbrances exceeded appropriations for snow and ice removal. This over-expenditure will
be funded by the 2016 tax rate.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type's portion of this
pool is displayed on the balance sheet as "Cash and Cash Equivalents." The deposits and investments of the
trust funds are held separately from those of other funds.

Statutes authorize the investment in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities, certificates
of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market accounts, bank deposits and the State Treasurer's Investment
Pool (Pool). The Treasurer may also invest frust funds in securities, other than mortgages or coliateral loans,
which are legal for the investment of funds of savings banks under the laws of the Commonwealth. In addition,
there are various restrictions limiting the amount and length of deposits and investments.

The Pool meets the criteria of an external investment pool. The Pool is administered by the Massachusetts
Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT), which was established by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth who serves
as Trustee. The fair vaiue of the position in the Pool is the same as the value of the Pool shares.

The System participates in the Pension Reserve Investment Trust (PRIT), which meets the criteria of an external
investment pool. PRIT is administered by the Pension Reserves Investment Management Board, which was
established by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts who serves as Trustee. The fair value of
the position in the PRIT is the same as the value of the PRIT shares.

Custodial Credit Rigsk — Deposits

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not be
returned to it. The City's policy allows unlimited deposits in bank accounts or CD's (up to one year maturity) that
are fully collateralized through a third party agreement. For uncollateralized bank accounts and CD's, deposits
may not exceed Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or other deposit insurance coverage.

These deposits will be limited to no more than 5% of an institution’s assets and no more than 25% of the City's
cash. This percentage may be increased for not more than 30 days during times of heavy collection or in
anticipation of large payments that will be made by the City in the near future. CD’s will be purchased for no more
than one year and will be reviewed frequently. The City's policy also allows unlimited investments in money
market funds, which are allowed by statute and are considered to be liquid funds,

At year-end, the carrying amount of deposits totaled $46,230,472 and the bank balance totaled $47,983,152. Of
the bank balance, $7,809,387 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance, $2,374,621 was covered by
Depositors Insurance Fund, and $37,799,144 was collateralized.

At December 31, 2014, the carrying amount of deposits for the System totaled $399,190 and the bank balance
totaled $559,292. All of the bank balance was covered by Federal Depository Insurance.
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Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure by the counterparty, the City will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral security that are in the possession of an outside party. The City's
investments subject to custodial credit risk include $3,041,338 in government sponsored enterprises, $6,688,593
in corporate bonds and $10,910,838 in equity securities, which have custodial credit risk exposure totaling
$20,640,769 because the related securities are uninsured, unregistered and held by the counterparty. The Gity
does not have an Investment policy for custodial credit risk.

The System'’s investments of $2,942 474 in government agencies, $1,718,452 in government sponsored
enterprises, $6,535,115 in corporate bonds and $23,047,196 in equity securities, which have custodial credit risk
exposure totaling $34,243,237 because the reiated securities are uninsured, unregistered and held by the
counterparty. The System does not have an investment policy for custodial credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The City's investment policy limits investment maturities to one year, except for the trust funds which are not
limited, as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The
System does not have formal investment policies that limit investment maturities as a means of managing
exposure to fair value losses arising from decreasing interest rates.

The City participates in MMDT, which maintains a cash portfolio and a short-term bond fund with combined
average maturities of approximately 3 months.

The System participates in PRIT. The effective weighted duration rate for PRIT investments ranged from 1.33 to
21.81 years.

As of June 30, 2015, the City had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturities (in years)

More
Investment Type Fair Value 1t0 5 6 to 10 Than 10
Debt Securities
Government Sponsored
Enterprises..........cc.ovceirieennens ] 3,041,338 § 1,802,086 3 - $ 1,239,252
Corporete Bonds........................ 5,688,593 3,508,548 2,228 433 951,612
Total Debt Securities................... 9729931 $ 5,310,634 $ 2228433 § 2,190,864
Other Investments
Equity Securities.........oceevcirnnens 10,910,838
Equity Mutual Funds................... © 1,713,631
Money Market Mutual Funds........ 893,872
MMDT ... e ree e 1,488,488
Total Investments............ccccoce. $ 24,736,760
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As of December 31, 2014, the System had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturities (in years)

Less More
Invastment Type Fair Value Than 1 105 6to 10 Than 10
Debt Secyrities
Government Agencies................ $§ 2,842,474 § - 8 253,124 § - § 2689,350
Government Sponsored
EMterprises.......oveniirineenrannnans 1,718,452 . 767,202 87.618 863,631
Corporate Bonds... ..o 6,535,115 83,332 630,582 2,188,297 3,652,904
Bond Mutual Funds..........cccniieian §,372,1¢7 . 8,372,197 =
Total Debt Securitles...........c..-... 19,568,238 $ 63,332 § 1,650,808 $ 10,648,113 $ 7,205,885
Other Investments
Equity Securities........covvevinniininien 23,047,196
Equity Mutual Funds..........cccoerneees 18,988,593
Pooled Real Estate Funds........... 2,970,556
Pooled Alternative Investments..... 13,704,685
Money Market Mutual Funds........ 1,718,707
(=1 1 1 R PO 48,956,785
Total investments.......ccvvcernineens $ 128,955,760
Credit Risk

The City's investment policy limits investments in debt securities to United States Treasuries and Agency
obligations, which carry a AA+ rating and other investments which are legal for the investment of funds of savings
panks under the laws of the Commonwealth. As of June 30, 2015, Standard & Poor's Investors Service rated the
City's investments as follows:

Quality Ratings
Fair
investment Type Value AA A BBB BB
Government Sponsored
Enterprises..........c..e... $ 3,041,338 $ 3,041,338 § - % - % -
Corporate Bonds........... 65,688,503 1,530,725 2,538,543 4,507,330 1,111,095
Total.,covee v § 97209031 $ 4,572,063 $ 2,538,543 $_1,507,330 $_1,111,995

The City's investments in MMDT and PRIT were unrated.

City of Woburn, Massachusetts 37 Basic Financial Statements




Notes to Basic Financigi Statements Year Ended Jung 30, 2015

The System has not adopted a formal policy related to credit risk. As of December 31, 2014, Standard & Poor's
Investors Service rated the System's investments as follows:

Quality Ratings

Fair

Investment Type Value AAA AA A BBB B Unrated
Government Agencies.... $ 2942474 § § 2042474 $ - $ - § - 3
Government Sponsored

ENterprises..... 1,718,452 - 1,718,452 - B - -
Corporate Bonds............ 6,535,115 229,089 386,525 1,108,876 1,076,544 - 3,733,181
Bond Mutual Funds......... 8,372,197 883,585 - - - 7,488,612 -
Total...ccoovveeveeriiiannss $ 19,668,238 $ 1,113,674 $_ 5047451 $_1,108876 $ 1076544 § 7!4835612 $_3,733,181

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City will minimize the concentration of credit risk by diversifying the investment portfolio, so that the impact of
potential losses from any one type of security or issuer will be minimized. No more than §% of the City's
investments are invested in any one issuer.

The System places no limit on the amount the System may invest in any one issuer. No more than 5% of the
System’s investments are invested in any one issuer.

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

At June 30, 2015, receivables for the individual major and nonmajor governmental funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
Real estate and personal property taxes............... $ 1072482 $ (1,023,839 $ 48 643
Real estate tax deferrals....... eeveereeesanneeeenane e 344,318 - 344,319
Tax ieNS...ooceeiivierveraeeriiineeiens e 2,905,331 - 2,805,331
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes................... 1,786,338 (990,886) 805,452
Departmentat and other..............coccoiiriinii e 1,888,461 {576,960) 1,311,601
Intergovernmental...........cceov v 3,265,203 - 3,265,293
TO A oo beeeaene e ineaes s seeeneeenee 11,272,224 (2,591,685) % 8,680,539
At June 30, 2015, receivables for the water and sewer enterprise funds consist of the following:
Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
URility IENS....cerrenei e iarieniniec e e s e $ B7,175 § - 3§ 87,175
(T [ YU U VOUPPPO: 9,241,706 - 9,241,706
Intergovernmental..........cooo o 615,884 - 615,884
OBl oo eeee e e esseeeenenree e srnensenenenees B 0,044,765 § - 3 9,944 765
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Governmental funds report unavailable revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Atthe end of the current year, the various
components of unavailable revenue reported in the governmentat funds were as follows:
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Other
General Governmental
Fund Funds Total
Asse! &!
Real estate and personal property taxes............... $ 48643 $ - % 48,643
Real estate tax deferrals.............coceevv e 344,319 - 344,319
Tax HEeNS......ov i e 2,905,331 - 2,906,331
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes..........c..ccoeuet 805,452 - 805,452
Departmental and other..................cooicviiiiiinnnn, 18,201 1,293,300 1,311,501
Intergovernmental..............oo v e - 2,108,110 2,108,110
Tax forecioSUreS, .. ...ooevvevie e e e eee s e vens 702,764 - 702,764
Total .cven e $ 4824710 § 3,401,410 $ 8,226,120
NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015, was as follows:
Beginning Ending
Balance increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital ets not bei reciated:
LN . e eeeeer e e rttarers e e rrssenenrsnsne e eneenes B 22,068,036 § - 8% - § 22,068,836
Construction in progress.......c.cvc e veevreesemmsianniinan - 1,528,120 - 1,528,120
Total capital assets not being depreciated............ 22,068,936 1,628,120 - 23,597,056
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land iImprovements. . ....cooeo e ev e inssnnsnvess v eee s 5,038,521 1,671,846 - 6,710,367
Building improvements... ... ... cercee i ime e 17,214,507 189,528 - 17,404,035
BUTiNgS. ... cevvvveerveereenenere vereees v sesenevennenn s 147,823,702 24,980 - 147,948,682
VehiCleS. .. ..ot v e v rs e e sea s 3,539,025 448,726 (830,135} 3,155,616
Machinery and equipment.................ien, 9,027 957 658,101 (521,316) 5,164,742
INFrastrUBtUE. .. ... coove vttt e csrate s s erc sec vra e 54,731,235 1,896,934 - 56,628,169
Total capital assets being depreciated.............. 237 474 947 4,888,115 {1,351,451) 241,011,611
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements............cccovcrviiieninennenic e (2,026,711} (242,400) - {2,269,111)
Building improvements. ..........coco v e {10,123,419) {744,791) - (10,868,210)
BUIlAINGS. ....c.coier i iravreein e i s e e (21,976,030} {796,286) - (22,772,316)
VEhICIBS. . oot e rerr i cer e e e re e e (2,428,696) (592,791} 809,417 {2,212,070)
Machinery and equipment......... ..o e (5,780,705) (543,373) 511,893 (5,812,185)
INfrastiucture.... ....cocov i e e {35,408,525) {1,438,028) - {36,846,553)
Total accumulated depreciation...................... (77,744 086) (4,357,669) 1,321,310 (80,780,445)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net................ 159,730,861 530,446 (30,141) 160,231,186
Totai governmental activities capital assets, net............ 181,799,797 $ 2,058,566 $ (30,141) $ 183,828,222
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Beginning Ending
Balance Inicreases Decreases Balance
Water and Sewer Activities:
Capital assels not being degreciated:
Land... RPN 332,240 $ - - $ 332,240
Constructlon in progress 83,000 152,058 (83,000) 152,058
Total capital assets not being depreciated......... 415,240 152,058 (83,000) 484,298
Capital assets being depreciated:
BUIdINGS... .o iosceeece e i i rn et e v e 6,953,303 237,073 - 7.190,376
AT (1T O 122,000 - (28,000} 94,000
Machinery and equipment......... ... 558,465 - {82,900) 466,565
INFrastruCUre. .. ....cooaveivevrs e ves s e sre eeemre e 72,657,744 2,891,651 (244,344) 75,305,051
Total capital assets being depreciated................. 80,292,512 3,128,724 {365,244) 83,055,952
Less accumulated deprediation for:
Buildings.... {2,804 380) (155,977) - {2,960,357)
Vehicles... . (122,000) - 28,000 {94,000)
Machinery and eqmpment et e eee e nres {486,855) (11,716} 92,900 (405,671)
Infrastructure... SRR SR (23,860,084) {1,474,887) 227,232 (25,108,642)
Total accumulated depreciation................c.ceevee (27,274,219) {1,642,590) 348,139 (28,568,670)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net................... 53,018,293 1,486,134 (17,105) 54 487,322

Total water and sewer activities capital assets, net......... $ 53433533 §

1,638,192 §

(100,105} $ 54,971,620

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General gOVEMMENLt........oooiiiiiiniri e s e e
Public safety..........coccivr i
o [T o (o] o O PSR
HUMAN SBIVICES. ... oeevieviiireinreevrnvee e e eraneneaaesrerransseners
Culture and recrBation........c.ovevriireierrneerrrererrrre e eeevnesrees

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities... .................

Business-Type Activities:

WV AtEr N0 SEWET . .. ot iireiercan e v e s e eranees
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NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Due To/From Other Funds

As of June 30, 2015, the City has an interfund receivable/payable of $258,926 which exists between the general
fund and the state highway grants fund. The purpose of this balance is to cover short-term cash needs that will be
funded by future grant proceeds.

interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2015, are summarized as follows:

Transfers In:
Nonmajor
General Governmental
Transfers Out: Fund Funds Total
General Fund..........ccoevveeiienrnee.. $ - 8 1,998,007 $ 1,998,007 (1)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds........ 3,568,676 - 3,568,676 (2)
Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund..... 1,477,613 - 1,477,613 (3)
Total...... oo oev e rrere e rrenee e B 5046,189 $ 1,808,007 $ 7,044196

(1) Represents a budgeted transfer from the general fund to the debt service fund.

(2) Represents budgeted transfers to the general fund from other available funds and the debt service fund.
(3) Represents the transfer of indirect costs from the water and sewer enterprise fund to the general fund.
NOTE 6 - SHORT-TERM FINANCING

Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:

« Cument operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue or tax anticipation
notes (RANS or TANS).

« Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing
through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BANS) or grant anticipation notes (GANS).

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest

expenditures and expenses for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and enterprise fund,
respectively.
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Details related to the short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2015, is as follows:

Balance at Balance at
Interest June 30, June 30,
Type Purpose Rate Due Date 2014 Issued Redeemed 2015
Governmental Activitles:
BAN  Municipal Purpose...........ccoeeeere. 0.76% 63072016 $ - § 1,600,000 $ - § 1,600,000.
Business-Type Activities:
BAN Water Improvements................ve0s 0.75%  6/3072016 - 800,000 - 800,000
Total Short-term Debt..........convriiicni e s e B - % 2400000 $ - § 2,400,000
NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Under the provisions of Chapter 44, Section 10, Municipal Law authorizes indebtedness up to a limit of 5% of the
equalized valuation. Debt issued in accordance with this section of the law is designated as being "inside the
debt limit." In addition, however, debt may be authorized in excess of that limit for specific purposes. Such debt,
when issued, is designated as being "outside the debt iimit."

Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30, 2015, and the debt service requirements are as
follows:

Bonds and Notes Payable Schedule - Governmental Funds

Original Interest

Maturities Loan . Rate Beginning Ending
Project Through Amount (%) Balance Issued Redeemed Balance
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2004....... 2026 % 10,003,033 344 % 639,820 $ -8 {514,820) § 125,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2005..........ccooeeeeeee 2008 22 500,000 4.45 3,000,000 - {1,500,000) 4,500,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2005.. 2015 1,150,000 4,19 280,000 - {280,000) .
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2007 .. 2027 2,370,000 2.00 1,890,000 . {180,000) 1,730,000
MCWT CW-06-05... 2018 300,000 200 127.432 . {30,900} 86,523
MCWT CW-05-12... . L 2018 225000 '2.00 95,574 - {23,181) 72,393
MCWT CW-O7-15...... v 2029 250,000 2.00 185,860 - (11,308) 184,551
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2012........ Broaoy 2037 70,154,000 3.16 18,470,000 - {580,000) 17,880,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2012 2025 4,830,000 3.26 4,740,000 . {20,000) 4,720,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2013... 2023 1,826,000 3.64 1,635,000 - {190,000) 1,445,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds ol 201 3 ......... 2026 12,810,000 378 12,610,000 - - 12,640,000
TR .. oee v e evemes ressne sasaesmsessmmssanecasass eaass aerasntas Senns soerns aan b aanss e een aeiean at st ar snrnrve oD 43l663!683 $ o 52!320.21923 40!353!467
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for governmental bonds payable in future years are as

follows:
Year Principal Interest Total
2016....cccoviinncnnnen, 3,281,721 $ 1290499 $ 4,572,220
2017 2,943,069 1,223,580 4,166,659
2018 2,919,443 1,130,945 4,050,388
2019, i 2,807,251 1,037,958 3,845,209
2020, e 2,827,499 944,361 3,771,860
.14 . I 3,017,751 845,833 3,863,684
2022....rireiens 2,898,009 739,350 3,737,359
2023... .., 2,973,271 627,863 3,601,134
2024, 2,783,540 514,020 3,297 560
2026, 2,548,813 415,196 2,964,009
2026.......cciiiieinnnn, 2,239,092 342 698 2,581,790
2027, 969,377 295 343 1,264,720
2028.......ccieeen, 829,667 267,424 1,097,091
2029, 829,964 242,063 1,072,027
2030, 810,000 216,268 1,026,268
2031, .. 800,000 190,108 990,108
2032 800,000 163,459 963,459
2033 s 800,000 135,209 935,209
2034 800,000 105,709 905,709
2035, 795,000 75,800 870,800
2036....ccccciiiiieneenee 795,000 45480 840,480
2037 795,000 15,145 810,145
Total.........covvivivnene. $ 40,363,467 $ 10,864,321 $ 51,227,788
Bonds and Notes Payable Schedule — Enterprise Funds
Original Interest
Maturities Lean Rate Beginning Ending
Project Through Amaount : (%) Balance |ssued Redeemed Balance
MCWT 00-07.. e 2021 5046050 446 § 2,215,000 § -8 (285000) § 1,930,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2004 2025 6,879,262 385 380,000 - (380,000} -
MWRA Notes of 2007... 2017 4,100,000  0.00 330,000 - {110,000) 220,000
Municipal Purpose chds of 2008 2018 220,000 463 100,000 - (25,000) 75,000
MWRA Notes of 2006... e 2018 1,200,000  0.00 480,000 . (120,000) 360,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2008..................... 2030 6,500,000 418 6,570,000 {255,000) 5,315,000
Municipal Purpose Refundlng Bonds of 2009......... 2020 900,000 383 525,000 (60,000) 435,000
MWRA Notes of 2010... - 2015 1,164,330 0.00 692,588 - {115,43%) 577,165
MCWT DWS 06-18... 2031 6,241,464 2,00 5,456,737 - {272,215) 5,164,522
MOWT DVWS 0717 roe o oosmoeors o eoeess s reeoneen 2031 3162577 200 3,162,577 - {158,128) 3,004,451
MWRA Notes of 2012... 2022 1,000,000  0.00 800,000 - {100,000} 700,000
MCWT DWS 08-19-A... 2033 2,085,158 200 1,950,880 - (84,028} 1,866,851
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2012......... 2025 2,066,000 3.38 2,915,000 - {15,000} 2,500,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2013.. e 2033 4,300,000 332 4,085,000 - (215,000) . 3,670,000
MCWT DWSOT-17A e vvversereoosererssnocemereers 2031 619,179 2,00 47,707 - {29,005) 18512
UBEOTR] WBIBE. 1« evvs seseceieems eeces srasvs bt ans s et are s tes aea sesssstas san et senmenassaneses sermna beb bernens 28,710,496 - {2.253.898) 26,456,601
Municipal Purpose Refundlng Bonds of 2009......... 2020 505,000 3.83 295,000 - (50,000) 245,000
MWRA Notes of 2010... 2015 040,025  0.00 188,805 - (189,808) :
MWRA Notes of 2013.. SR UUI-.:} | . 479,050  0.00 383,240 - (66,810) 287,430
MWRA NOLES Of 2015 vrvvrvooovos o rorsmes 2025 366,175  0.00 - 366,175 - 366,175
SUELOE] SBWET .. ... cevuervieresroe ser sassre semoss s ens sremsemiasemen shrasran s s £ns et erabs drnsen ubans e e in 868,045 366,175 (335,615) 898,606
TOta] ENHErPISE FUNHS. .. .occeeeme st verers raners ces e ans e s s arsmsssrmsnn s s oot e senasrsnsansmenen 828 678,644 B 386,176 $___(2,680.613) §__ 27,355,206
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for water and sewer enterprise fund bonds and notes payable
in future years are as follows:

Yaar Principal Interest Total
2046 . ciieieeen. § 2,348,683 § 776,352 $ 3,125,045
2017 . e 2,374,406 716,155 3,090,561
2018, 2,280,336 648,958 2,929,294
2019 e e n e 2,075,680 577,624 2,653,304
2020, s 2,102,061 507,521 2,609,582
2029 1,888,241 453,527 2,341,768
2022, e 1,670,090 402,110 1,972,200
2023, e v e 1,487,180 355,766 1,842 646
2024....ce e 1,609,518 307,790 1,817,308
2025 e 1,537,102 259,889 1,796,991
2026......cc e 1,268,334 218,671 1,477,005
2027 e 1,276,442 181,856 1,458,008
2028......cciiiiiei e 1,314,818 142,950 1,457,768
2029... ... 1,348,465 102,973 1,451,438
2030, .o 1,382,380 61,635 1,443,925
2031, e 026,602 29,646 956,248
2032... . e 336,108 13,925 350,033
2033, 338,740 4,677 343,417
Total......cooeeerrenn.. $ 27,865,206 $_ 5,761,725 $ 33,116,931

In prior years, the City defeased certain of its outstanding general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of
new refunding bonds in an irrevocable escrow account to provide amounts sufficient for the future payment of
principal and interest on these bonds. Accordingly, neither the assets in escrow nor the liability for the defeased
bonds are included in the City's financial statements. As of June 30, 2015, $1 5,000,000 of general obligation
bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

The Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (MWRA) operates an Infiitration/inflow Local Assistance Program
for community owned collection systems. For each community approved for the project, financial assistance
received from the MWRA consists of a grant and non-interest bearing loan. At June 30, 2015, the outstanding
principal amount of these loans totaled $853,605.

The governmental funds are scheduled to be subsidized by the Massachusetts Clean Water Trust (MCWT)on a
periodic basis for principal in the amount of $1,223 and interest costs for $19,866. Thus, net MCWT loan
repayments, including interest, are scheduled to be $138,395. Since the City is legaliy obligated for the total
amount of the debt, such amounts have been recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements. The
2015 interest subsidy totaled $2,936.

The water and sewer enterprise fund is scheduled to be subsidized by the MCWT on a periodic basis for principal
in the amount of $615,884 and interest costs for $217,020. Thus, net MCWT loan repayments, including interest,
are scheduled to be $1,393,077. The principal subsidies are guaranteed and therefore a $615,884
intergovernmental receivable has been reported in the proprietary fund financial statements. Since the City is
legally obligated for the total amount of the debt, such amounts have been recorded in the accompanying basic
financial statements. The 2015 principal and interest subsidies totaled $79,276 and $80,956, respectively.
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The City is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt fimit. At June 30, 2015, the City had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Pumpose Amount

Hurld/Wyman elementary school feasibility study.......... $ 875,000
Sewer inflow and infiltration reduction......................... 6,800,000
Surface drainage ...........ccoiiiie i iiciin s e 6,800,000
Leland park improvements...........ccoceviiiiie s 1,300,000
Water infrastructure improvemenis.........cocovevieennnn s 3,428,961
At 113 ) T PP 6,000,000

1< 7= RSO PO $ 25,203,961

Changes in Long-term Liabilities

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the foliowing changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Governmental Activities:
Compensated absences.............. 3 6,624,000 $§ 1684000 $ (1,947,000) $§ 6,361,000 $ 1,590,000
Other postemployment benefits..... 41,461,442 13,173,627 (7,681,678) 46,053,391 -
Net pension Rability..................... 51,404,000 7,694,000 - 59,098,000 -
Bonds payable..........ccccovveeenenn, 43,683,686 - (3,320,219) 40,363,467 3,281,721
Tl e oo eeteevreeneenene. § 143,173,128 § 22,651,627 $_ (12,948,897) § 152,775,858 $__ 4,871,721
Business-fype Activities:
Unamortized bond premiums........ $ 18,778 § - 8 (18,778) $ - $ -
Compensated absences.............. 238,000 65,000 (60,000) 243,000 61,000
Other postemployment benefits..... 181,259 146,637 {154,552) 183,344 -
Net pension liabifity.............ccee . 783,000 117,000 - 900,000 -
Bonds payable.........ooveivereeen 29,578,544 366,175 (2,589,513} 27,355,206 2,348,693
Tt oo eeeaiirisnieseenreneeennn. 5 30,809,681 § 694,812 $ (2,822,843) $ 28,681,550 $_ 2,409,693
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NOTE 8 — GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

GASB #54 provides for two major types of fund balances, which are nonspendable and spendable.
Nonspendable fund balances are balances that cannot be spent because they are not expected to be converted
to cash or they are legally or contractually required to remain intact. Examples of this classification are prepaid
items; inventories, and principal (corpus) of an endowment fund. The City has reported principal portions of
endowment funds as nonspendable.

in addition to the nonspendable fund balance, GASB #54 has provided a hierarchy of spendable fund balances,
based on a hierarchy of spending constraints.

« Restricted; fund balances that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling
legislation.

« Committed: fund balances that contain seif-imposed constraints of the government from its highest level
of decision making authority. The City's highest leve! of decision making authority is City Council.

« Assigned: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government to be used for a
particular purpose.

e Unassigned: fund balance of the general fund that is not constrained for any particular purpose.

As of June 30, 2015, the governmental fund balances consisted of the following:

Nonmajor Totat
Library Trust ~ Governmental ~ Governmental
Gengeral Fund Funts Funds
Fund Balances
Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal..........ccoicvceninnn $ -8 - § 2,905,001 $ 2,905,001
Restricted for:
Municipai federal and state grants.............. - - 365,551 365,551
Education federal and state grants......... - . 780,200 790,200
Receipts reserved for appropriation funds.... - 1,424,415 1,424,415
Municipal revolving funds... e rere e - - 608,800 808,900
School lunch... verairs tre oas - 427,905 427,905
Infrastructure fund - 068,813 968,813
Other special revenue.. - 549,639 549,639
Debt service funds... - 315373 316,373
Library trust funds - speclar revenue iunds... - - 542,626 542,826
Library trust funds - permanent funds... . - 7,179,484 - 7,179,484
Cemetery perpetual care funds - - 255388 255,388
Committed to:
Affordable housing stabilization fund........... 3,031,681 - 3,031,581
General government........c.ccoce v i crnereanes 325623 - - 325,623
PUDIIC SafetY......cee et e e e 59,034 - - 59,034
PUblic WOTKS......ccov v e cinsrnisns e resn e 360,134 - . 360,134
HUuman SEIVICES..........ociveierinin venamerns s 61,356 - 61,356
Empioyee benefls...........coooiniennimneninenn 827,609 - B 827,600
Capital outlay..........ocvveei i vnr s i 2,687,159 - 2,587,169
Assigned to:
General government... .......cccivimscnanesnn 86,264 - - 86,264
Public safely.........cccvceiievirmrmeie e 13,379 - - 13,379
EdUcation.......oo oo cervavancsnnronsees sonrersenares 343,453 - 343,453
PUbBE WOTKS.....o v e st ats s v s en v 56,820 - 56,829
HUMEN SEIVICES....cocov e e ceeai e e isrsin s 3,452 - 3.452
Culture and recreation............ceoemuveeerinnin 16,289 - 16,289
Unassigned. ..o et it e 29,248,358 - - 20,248,358
Total Fund BalBnges...........occoeesevvvemneeenreeveenee 5 _ 37,020,620 § 7,179,484 § 9,153,811 $ 53,353,815
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Massachuseits General Law Ch.40 §58 aliows for the establishment of Stabilization funds for one or more
different purposes. The creation of a fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body and must clearly
define the purpose of the fund. Any change to the purpose of the fund along with any additions to or
appropriations from the fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body.

At year end, the general stabilization fund totaled $11,289,484 and is reported as unassigned fund balance within
the general fund; and the affordable housing stabilization fund totaled $3,031,581 and is reported as committed
fund balance within the general fund.

NOTE 9 - RISK FINANCING

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance. The City administers
various premium-based health care plans, workers compensation and other insurance for its employees and
retirees.

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN
Plan Descriptions

The City is a member of the Woburn Contributory Retirement System (System), a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan covering eligible employees of the 2 member units. The System is administered by
five board members (Board) on behalf of all current employees and retirees except for current teachers and
retired teachers. Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan.
The System is a component unit and is reported as a pension frust fund in the fiduciary fund financial statements.

The City is a member of the Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System (MTRS), a cost-sharing multi-employer
defined benefit plan. MTRS is managed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (Commonwealth) on behalf of
municipal teachers and municipal teacher refirees. The Commonwealth is a nonernployer contributor and is
responsible for 100% of the contributions and future benefit requirements of the MTRS. The MTRS covers
certified teachers in cities (except Boston), towns, regional school districts, charter schools, educational
collaboratives and Quincy College. The MTRS is part of the Commonwealith’s reporting entity and the audited
financlal report may be obtained by visiting http://www.mass.gov/osc/publications-and-reports/financial-reports/.

Special Funding Situation

The Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to make 100% of all actuarially
determined employer contributions on behalf of the City to the MTRS. Therefore, the City is considered to be in a
special funding situation as defined by GASE Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions
and the Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributer in MTRS. Since the City does not contribute directly to
MTRS, there is no net pension liability to recognize. The total of the Commonwealth provided contributions have
been allocated based on each employer's covered payroll to the total covered payroll of employers in MTRS as of
the measurement date of June 30, 2014. The City's portion of the collective pension expense, contributed by the
Commonwealth, of $5,821,247 is reported in the general fund as intergovernmental revenue and pension benefits
in the current year. The portion of the Commonwealth’s collective net pension liability associated with the City is
$83,789,331 as of the measurement date.
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Benefits Provided

Both Systems provide retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Massachusetts Contributory Retirement System benefits are, with certain minor exceptions, uniform from system
to system. The Systems provide retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum of 80% of a member's highest
three-year average annual rate of regular compensation. For persons who became members on or after April 2,
2012, average salary is the average annual rate of regular compensation received during the five consecutive
years that produce the highest average, or, if greater, during the last five years (whether or not consecutive)
preceding retirement. Benefit payments are based upon & member's age, length of creditable service, level of
compensation, and group classification. Members become vested after ten years of creditable service. There
were no changes in benefit terms that affected the measurement of the total pension liability at December 31,
2014.

Employees who resign from service and who are not eligible to receive a retirement allowance or are under the
age of 55 are entitied to request a refund of their accumulated total deductions. Survivor benefits are extended to
eligible beneficiaries of members whose death ocours prior to or following retirement.

Cost-of-living adjustments granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increase in other benefits imposed by the
Commonwealth’s state law during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the
pension fund. Cost-of-living adjustments granted after 1997 must be approved by the Board and are borne by the
System.

At December 31, 2014, the System’s membership consists of the following:

ACHYE MEIMDEIS . .. o et irrveieienierare i sbs s et e e saranas B02
INGCHVE MEMIDETIS. .. onieiir e eereeaee bt srr s s 89
Disabled MemMbDEIS. .. .ce vt e eeceie et srr s aes e s 43
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits......... 378

B (- T PP 1,112

Contributions

Chapter 32 of the MGL governs the contributions of plan members and member units. Active plan members are
required to contribute at rates ranging from 5% to 9% of gross regular compensation with an additional 2%
contribution required for compensation exceeding $30,000. The percentage rate is keyed to the date upon which
an employee's membership commences. The member units are required to pay into the System a legislatively
mandated actuarial determined contribution that is apportioned among the employers based on active current
payroll. The total member units’ contribution for the year ended December 31, 2014, was $5,500,350, 18.30% of
covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with plan member contributions, is
expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by plan members during the year, with an additionai amount to
finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City's proportionate share of the required contribution was
$5,305,862 which equaled its actual contribution.
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Pension Liabilities

The components of the net pension liability of the participating member units at June 30, 2015, were as follows:

Total pension liability............cocccovveevviiicceienn. $ 121,619,829
The pension plan's fiduciary net position.............. {129,342 597)
The net pension liability............ccccoviiiiiiiiinnnns $ 62,277,232

The pension plan's fidicuary net position as
a percentage of the total pension liability............ 67.50%

At June 30, 2015, the City reported a liability of $59,998,000 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension lizbility was measured as of December 31, 2014, and the total pension liability used to caiculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2014. Accordingly, update
procedures were used to roll forward the total pension liability to the measurement date. The City’s proportion of
the net pension liability was based on a prajection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension
plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating members. At December 31, 2014, the City's
proportion was 96.34%, which did not change from its proportion measured at December 31, 2013.

Fension Expense

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $6,335,000. At June 30, 2015, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources related to pensions of $6,782,000, from the net difference between
projected and actual investment eamings on pension plan investments and changes of assumptions. Since the
System performs an actuarial valuation bi-annually, there are no reported differences between expected and
actual experience as of December 31, 2014.

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2016 e § 1,825,000
L4 & b 1,525,000
4 L TR 1,525,000
0 2 F U 1,625,000
2020, .. e e e 682,000
o= | I $ 6,782,000
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Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the January 1, 2014, actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement that was updated to

December 31, 2014:

Valuation date......ccveververineceecrivnieinans e

Actuarial costmethod..........ccooveeviiiennne

Amortizationmethod.........ccocooviiiiiecnnnnn,

Remaining amortization period................

Asset valuation method............ccooceieie,
Projected salary increases.............ccouviee

Cost of living adjustments..................

Rates of retiremant...........ovcovevvniirranaens

Rates of disability..........c.cooee ey

Mortality Rates:

Pre-Retirement................

Post-Retirement..........c.e. oot

Disabled Retiree.............ccoee .

Investment rate of return/Discount rate

Investment policy

The pension plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the
Board. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with a long-term objective of achieving and maintaining a

January 1, 2014

Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method.

Increase at 4.0% per year.

21 years at January 1, 2014, closed.

Assets are reported at fair market value.

3.5% for 2015 through 2016 and 4.0% for 2017 and beyond.

3.0% of the lesser of the pension amount and
$12,000 per year.

Varies based upon age for general employees, police
and fire emplovyees.

Disability is assumed to be 40% ordinary and 60% accidental
for Groups 1 and 2 and 10% ordinary and 80% accidental for
Group 4. '

The RP-2000 Employee Mortality Table projected generationally

with Scale BB for males and females.

The RP-2000 Employee Mortality Table projected 7 years beyond the

valuation using Scale AA for males and females.

The RP-2000 Employee Mortality Table set forward 2 yeawrs for all

disabled members.

8.0% per year.

fully funded status for the benefits provided through the pension plan.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target

asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
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Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target
asset allocation as of January 1, 2014 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected  Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Real Rate of Return. Asset Allocation
U.S. large cap equities........ eeeeeeeeeeran. 8.10% 9.00%
U.S. mid cap equilties................ccceeminne 9.40% 10.80%
U.S. smallcap equities.............ooeeviinnnn, 10.60% 11.70%
International equities............coviireinreinnnes 8.10% 15.00%
Emerging market equities...................... 11.10% 7.00%
U.S. fixed income...........ooeeeviniinninnnne, 7.20% 10.00%
High yield fixed income.........cc...ccccooiie 5.30% 8.00%
Real @5tate.........coeeeeieneeiverieineiierineaans 6.90% 7.50%
Private @quity........c oo veevecvriirimiiiieenenennn 13.60% 8.50%
Hedge funds.........coceievievnn v 7.20% 7.50%
Real @a88e15......ccoovvevreeniicianiin e 7.20% 5.00%
100.00%

Rate of return

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan investments,
net of pension plan investment expense, was 6.14%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment
performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actuafly invested.

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.0%. The projection of cash fiows used to
determine the discount rate assumed plan member contributions wilt be made at the current contribution rate and
that contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rate. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan
investments was applied to-all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate
The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of 8.0%, as well as what the net

pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (7.0%) or 1-
percentage-point higher (9.0%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
{7.00%) {(8.00%) {9.00%)
The City's proportionate share of the
net pension liability.............cocconi $ 80,377,000 $ £9,098,000 § 42 668,000
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Notes to Basi¢ Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2015

Changes of Assumptions

The mortality rates applicable to non-disabled participants used for the prior year were based on the RP-2000
Mortality Table with projections specified by IRS Regulation 1.430(h)(3)-1, as applicable to the valuation year
using a combined static table for both annuitants and non-annuitants. The mortality assumption applicable to
non-disabled participants was changed to the RP-2000 Mortality Table projected generationally with Scale BB for
males and females.

NOTE 11 ~ POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Pian Description — The City of Woburn administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (Retiree
Health Plan). The plan provides lifetime healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses through the
City's group heaith insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members. Chapter 32B of the MGL
assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. Benefit provisions are negotiated between
the City and the unions representing City employees and are renegotiated each bargaining petiod. The

Retiree Health Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.

Funding Policy — Contribution requirements are also negotiated between the City and union representatives. The
required contribution is based on a pay-as-you-go financing requirement. Depending on the plan selected, the
City contributes various percentages of the cost of current-year premiums for eligible retired plan members and
their spouses. Plan members receiving benefits contribute the remaining portion of their premium costs.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation — The City's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) is caiculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.

The components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and
changes in the City's net OPEB obligation are summarized in the following table:

Annual required contibution............cccccoiiniimnienenennn B 12,866,510
Interest on net OPEB obligation.............occoiiininin 2,082,635
Adjustment to annual required contribution..................... (1,628,881}
Annual OPEB cost (EXpense).......cc.ceceevrevecmniieceeeee 13,320,264
Contributions made............ oo e (7,836,230)
Increase in net CPEB obligation..........ccocoiiiinnns 5,484,034
Net OPEB obligation-beginning of year..............c.coeenen 41,662,701
Net OPEB obligation-end of year..........c..ccccoccovvennnnne.. $ 47,136,735
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to ic Fi i men Year Ended June 30, 2015

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost confributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for 2015 was as follows:

Year Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB

Ended QOPEB Cost _Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2016 $ 13,320,264 58% $ 47,136,735
6/30/2014 12,743,665 65% 41,652,701
6/30/2013 17,034,163 43% 37,153,606

Funded Status and Funding Progress — As of June 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $161,311,012 all of which was unfunded.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual resuits are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The scheduie of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the June 30, 2013, actuarial valuation, actuarial liabilities were determined using the projected unit credit cost
method. The actuarial assumptions included a 5% investment return assumption, which is based on the expected
yield on the assets of the City, calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an
annual medical cost trend rate of 7.5% initially, graded to 5% over 5 years and included a 4% inflation
assumption. The UAAL is being amortized using a 30 year open amortization method, with amortization payments
increasing at 4% per year. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2015, is 30 years.

NOTE 12 - CONTINGENCIES

The City participates in a number of federal award programs. Although the grant programs have been audited in
accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 through June 30, 2015, these
programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although it is expected such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

Various legal actions and claims are pending. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and the outcome of
individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any, at June 30, 2015,
cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the financial
position at June 30, 2015.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS

The City has entered into contracts, or is plahning to enter into contracts, totaling $875,000 for the Hurld\Wyman
elementary school feasibility study. This is the first phase of the planned construction of a new elementary
school.

The City has entered into contracts, or is planning to enter into contracts, totaling $6.8 million for sewer infiltration
and inflow. The purpose of this project is to reduce inflow and infiltration of the sewer system.

The City has entered into contracts, or is planning to enter into contracts, totaling $6.8 million for surface drainage
projects. The purpose of the projects is to improve management of surface run-off throughout the City.

The City has entered into contracts, or is planning to enter into contracts, totaling $1.3 million for Leland park
irmprovements.

The City has entered into contracts, or is planning to enter into contracts, totaling $3.4 million for water
infrastructure improvements.

The City has entered into contracts, or is planning to enter into contracts, totaling $6 million for the installation of
water meters. This project involves installing new water meters for all residential and commercial properties in the
City.

NOTE 14 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 15, 2016, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 15 — REVISION OF NET POSITION PREVIOUSLY REPORTED

Beginning net position of governmental activities, business-type activities and each applicable enterprise fund has

been revised to refiect the implementation of GASB Statement #68. The revised balances are summarized in the
following table.

6/30/14
Previously 6/30/14
Reported Implementation Revised
Balances of GASB #68 Balances
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Governmental activities.............cccc.oeoe.. $ 150,256,372 § {51,404,000) $ ©8,852,372
Business-type activities...............cooveee e 41,500,566 (783,000} 40,717,666
TOAL .. eoeveeveeeeeereeieme e reanseerersameeeeenens $191,756938  $ (52,187,000) $ 138,569,938
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
Water and sewer enterprise.................... $__ 41,600,566 $ (783,000) $ _ 40,717,566
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Notes tp Basic Financial Statements _ Year Ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 15 - IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

During 2015, the following GASB pronouncements were implemented:

GASB Statement #67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans; GASB Statement #68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions; and GASB Statement #71 Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date.  Financial statement changes include the recognition of a net
pension liability, pension expense and deferred outflows/inflows of resources depending on the nature of
the change each year. The financial statements also recognized a restatement of the beginning net
position fo reflect the net pension liability at the beginning of the year. The notes to the basic financial
statements and the required supplementary information were expanded to include additional required
schedules and disclosures.

GASB Statement #69, Governmental Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations. This
pronouncement did not impact the basic financiai statements.

The following GASB pronouncements will be implemented in the future:

The GASB issued Statement #72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, which is required to be
implemented in 2018.

The GASB issued Statement #73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets
That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB
Statements 67 and 68. The provisions of this Statement are effective for 2016—except those provisions
that address employers and governmental non-employer contributing entities for pensions that are not
within the scope of Statement 68, which is required to be implemented in 2017.

The GASB issued Statement #74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than
Pension Plans, which is required to be implemented in 2017.

The GASB issued Statement #75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions, which is required to be implemented in 2018.

The GASB issued Statement #76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State
and Local Governments, which is required to be implemented in 2016.

The GASB issued Statement #77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, which is required to be implemented in
2017.

Managemerit is currently assessing the impact the implementation of these pronouncements will have on the
basic financial statements.
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GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Budgeted Amounts
Amounts Curmrent Year
Carried Forward initial Original Final
From Prior Year Budget Budget Budget
REVENUES:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net oftax refunds.........c.o oo e v i - § 90,895,362 § 90,895,362 § 01,510,362
Tax Hens...... cocoervinivcmrnecineen Eeep— - - - -
Motor vehicle excise taxes............ouees 5,727,000 5,727,000 5,727,000
Hotel/motel tlax.......coceveveenrcerimrareenees - 2,600,000 2,600,000 2,600,000
Meals taX.........ccoviernvvinns rerenen- b ehman e eerenun 780,000 780,000 780,000
Penaities and interest on taxes.........ccoouvennens e - 547,000 547,000 547,000
Intergovemmental............coeieeninen 14,295,302 14,295,302 14,295,302
Departmental and other........ooviiii e - 1,721,000 1,721,000 1,721,000
Investment INCOMIE.....cccii i s re e ans - 300,000 300,000 300,000
TOTAL REVENUES........c.cvirmeicremrcciasioneens - 116,865,664 116,865,664 1 1_7,480.864
EXPENDITURES;
Current:
General governmemnt......c.vv e ruresrasssecness 258,935 3,575,644 3,834 779 4,405,275
Public safety.........coccovivmvinniinrnas . 164,556 15,762,110 15,916,666 17,071,087
=3 (1 =140 o P S 513,598 65,259 887 55,773,485 55,773,485
PUDIC WOTKS. .. et eieee e cearacamreeemcneecee e e seeeens 281,626 7,022 440 8,204,066 8,172,953
HUMaN SerViCES. . e e icmceime et et enaeea s 27,302 1,062,804 1,090,106 1,491,132
Culture and recreation..............coiciicieve i s 25,698 1,889,889 1,925 587 1,925,515
Pensionbenefits. ........cccoooiiicinn i - 5,321,019 532119 5,321,019
Employee benefits..........ccoooniiiinnnr i, 964,679 18,626,003 19,590,682 20,517,340
State and county charges - 3,454,805 3,454,805 3,454,805
Capital outlay.........ccccieieiinrinienniinreneae e 2,759,187 - 2,759,187 5,394,020
Debt service:
PHAGIPAL .. vveeiver v ceriet et s rn s sers - 1,600,000 1,600,000 3,245,000
1101 (=] =] ry i e e B e e e PO - 1,011,401 1,011,401 1,672,598
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.........cocvimnicremnecnns 4,985,581 115,496,202 120,481,783 128,444,229
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES......ccoovimniiimnvisnieneeercaenas {4,285,681) 1,869,462 (3,616,118) (10,963,565)
QOTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
R0 R | OO RPN - 1,477,513 1477513 5,666,189
TrANSTErS OUL ...vocieiiiie e emecc s s b reeaes - (1,898,007 {1,998,007) (1,988,007
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)....... reerrresarrreeeraaanrann - (520,484) {520,494) 3,668,182
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE. ............coiieenerens (4,985,581) 848,968 {4,136,613) {7,295,383)
BUDGETARY FUUND BALANCE, Beginning of year....... - 23,911,415 23,911,415 23911415
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, End of year............... {4,985,581) $ 24,760,383 § 19,774,802 $ 16,616,032

See notes to required supplementary infarmation.
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Actual Amounts Variance
Budgetary Carried Forward to Final
Amounis To Next Year Budget
$ 92,080,326 § - 5 569,963
1,323,914 - 1,323,914
6,277,641 = 550,641
3,003,361 = 403,361
973,492 - 193,492
588,142 - 41,142
14,869,458 574,156
2,369,124 - 648,124
523,754 223,754
122,009,211 - 4,528,547
3,451,963 411,887 541,425
16,946,199 72,413 52 475
55,407,004 343,453 23,028
8,348,574 416,963 (592 ,584)
1,414,514 64,808 11,810
1,869,410 16,289 39,816
5,311,643 - 9,376
18,427,439 827,609 262,292
3,454 805 - -
2,589,664 2,587,159 207,197
3,245,000 .
1,435,214 - 237,384
122,811,429 4,740,581 792,219
(802,218) (4,740,581) 5,320,766
5,666,189 -
{1,998,007) - -
3,668,182
2,765,964 - (4,740,581) 5,320,766
23,911,415 -
$ 26,677,379 § (4,740,581 § 5,320,768
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Pension Plan Schedules —
Retirement System

The Pension Plan's Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios presents multi-year
trend information on the net pension liability and related ratios.

The Pension Plan’s Schedule of Contributions presents multi-year frend information on the required and actual
contributions to the pension plan and related ratios.

The Pension Plan's Schedule of Investment Return presents multi-year trend information on the money-weighted
investment return on retirement assets, net of investment expense.

The schedules are intended to present information for ten years. Until a ten-year trend is compiled, information is
presented for those years for which information is available.
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

AND RELATED RATIOS
WOBURN CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Total pension liability:

Tt o ol ) $

Interest... .

Changes | m beneft terms .
Differences between expected and actuai experience ....... eveneens
Changes in assumptions............cceeivvieieeeein i iie s e
Benefit payments, inciuding refunds of employee contributions....

Net change in total pension liability.................ccooeeiiviiiiiciiin e

Total pension liability, beginning....

Total pension liability, ending (@)...........cccoovviiivive i $

Pian fiduciary net position:
Member contribUtions..............o.ovvve e e §
Employer contributions................ooii
Pension contributions from federal grants..............................
Net investment inCome (l0S8).......ccooviiiieiirnirn e er e e
Retirement benefits and refunds.................ccccciii i
Administrative eXpenses..........cccooccieiiirin v e
Other expenses... .
Military Service Fund Contnbutlon

Net increase (decrease) in fiduciary net position.............................
Fiduciary net position at beginning of year....................cco,
Fiduciary net position atend ofyear (b).............c.ociviiviiiiiiiiiinn. 8
Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b).....ccvvermerrirmneniiinean SvsssFssRvss: 5

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension Hability. .. ... s e

Covered-employee payroll.............cocoiiriiiiiiii e e e e $

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered-employee
payrall..........oc.eooeeie,

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.

Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for

which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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December 31,

2014

3,301,279
14,163,908

6,330,561
{11,623,361)

12,172,387

179,447 442

191,619,829

2,818,594
5,509,350

7,589,834
(11,623,361)
(502,889)

275,496

4,067,024

125,275,573

129,342,587

62,277,232

67.50%

30,103,112

206.88%
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SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
WOBURN CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM

December 31,
- 2014

Actuarially determined contribution (@)............ccoveeecrviiinninicisien s $ 5,509,350
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribUtion. ... ... e e {5,5609,350)

Contribution deficiency (EXCesS)........cvveeerivrienr e iirairersaeenne -

Covered-employee PAYTON...........c.oeeuurmaiiar i iee i ies i nr s s s e e a s ann s $ 30,103,112
Contributions as a percentage of covered-

employee Payroll... ... ..ot e 18.30%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those
years for which information is available.

(a) Based on the results of the January 1, 2014, actuarial
valuation (including assumptions and methods) which
determined budgeted appropriations for fiscal 2015.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURN
WOBURN CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM

December 31,
2014
Annual money-weighted rate of return,
net of investment expense............coooiei i 6.14%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those
years for which information is available.

The annual money-weighted rate of return has been calculated by
Buck Consultants, LLC, the System's actuary.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Pension Pian Schedules - City

The Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability presents multi-year trend information
on the City’s net pension liability and related ratios.

The Schedule of City's Contributions presents multi-year trend information on the City's required and actual
contributions to the pension plan and related ratios.

The Schedule of the Special Funding Amounts of the Net Pension Liability for the Massachusetts Teachers
Contributory Retirement System presents muiti-year trend information on the liability and expense assumed by
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts on behalf of the City along with related ratios.

These schedules are intended to present information for ten years. Until a ten-year trend is compiled, information
is presented for those years for which information is available.
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SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
WOBURN CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM

December 31,
2014

City's proportion of the net pension liability (asset)......c...cccoevviiiinnnn, 96.34%
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)................... $ 59,998,000
City's covered employee Payroll...........c...vev e e veeieeceeceeie e e e $ 29,001,000
Net pension liability as a percentage of City's covered-employee

PAYTOIL .t e e e e e r e e e e e e 206.88%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total pension liability.........cc.coi i e 67.50%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for
which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF CITY'S CONTRIBUTIONS
~ WOBURN CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM

December 31,

2014

Actuarially determined contribution (2)..........cooiiiii i $ 5,305,862
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution...... ..o - {5,305,862)

Contribution deficiency (EXCeSS).......ccuvcvrerrr v reiriiiiiee s -

City's covered-employee payroll..........cccooe e v $ 29,001,000
Contributions as a percentage of City covered-

employee payroll........coevvvens T P PP T ITTI 18.30%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those
years for which information is available.

(a) Based on the results of the January 1, 2014, actuarial
valuation (including assumptions and methods) which
determined budgeted appropriations for fiscal 2015.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF THE SPECIAL FUNDING AMOUNTS
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
MASSACHUSETTS TEACHERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to
make all actuarially determined employer contributions on behalf of the member employers which
creates a special funding situation. Since the City does not contribute directly to MTRS, there is no
net pension liability to recognize. This schedule discloses the Commonwealth's 100% share of the
coilective net pension liability that is asscciated with the City; the portion of the collective pension

expense as both a revenue and pension expense recognized by the City; and the Plan's fiduciary net

position as a percentage of the total iiability.
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Commonwealth's City's Expense
100% Share of the and Revenue
‘Net Pension Recognized for Plan Fiduciary Net
Liability the Positionas a
Associated with Commonwealth's Percentage of the
Fiscal Year the City Support Totai Liability
2015, i § 83,789,331 % 5,821,247 61.64%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a2 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for
which information is available,

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Other Postemployment
Benefit Plan Schedules

The Schedule of Funding Progress compares, over time, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits with the
actuarial value of accumulated plan assets. The Schedule of Employer Contributions compares, over time, the
annual reduired contribution with the actual contributions made.

The Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions presents factors that significantly affect the identification of
trends in the amounts reported.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuariat UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered  of Covered
Valuation Assels Projected Unit Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date {A) {B) (B-A) (A/B) (C) __[{B-A)IC)
6/30/2013 % - § 161,311,012 $ 161,311,012 0% $ NA N/A
6/30/2011 - 243,982,491 243,982 491 0% N/A N/A
8/30/2009 - 208,491,596 208,491,586 0% N/A N/A
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Annual Actual
Year Required Contributions Percentage
Ended Contribution Made Contributed
6/30/2015 § 12,866,510 § 7,838,230 61%
6/30/2014 12,335,923 8,244,570 67%
6/30/2013 16,800,797 7,327,979 44%
6/30/2012 16,026,805 6,664,564 42%
6/30/2011 13,857,572 7,059,608 51%
6/30/2010 13,220,391 6,231,320 47%

See notes to required supplementary information.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN
SCHEDULE OF ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Actuarlal Methods:
Valuation date..........cc.co e iee v vrein e vin e vnra 0 June 30, 2013
Actuarial cost method...............coeeeieei v veeennon.. Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method............... ..o cee v ne v 30 ye@r open amortization method
with payments increasing at 4.0% per year
Remaining amortization period.......................... 30 years as of June 30, 2013
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment rate of return... ... 5.0%, pay-as-you-go
Medical costtrend rate.....................ccocoo e .. 7.5% graded to 5.0% over b years
Inflation assumiplion............ccocoviii i 4.0%
Plan Membership:
Current retirees, beneficiaries, and dependents.... 1,013
Current active members...............ccoovivciinnnen. 842
Total . 1,855

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information Year Ended June 30, 2015
NOTE A - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

1. Budgetary Information

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved by the Council. The Mayor presents
an annual budget to the Council, which includes estimates of revenues and other financing sources and
recornmendations of expenditures and other financing uses. The Council, which has full authority to amend
and/or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the expenditure budget by majority vote.

Increases or transfers between and within departments subsequent to the approval of the annual budget, requires
majority Council approval via a supplemental appropriation or Council order.

The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each year. Others are continuing
appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior year be carried
forward and made available for spending in the current year. These carry forwards are included as part of the
subsequent year's original budget.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the legal leve! of spending (salaries, expenses and capital) authorized
for an appropriation account. However, the payment of debt service is statutorily required, regardiess of whether
such amounts are appropriated. Additionally, expenditures for disasters, natural or otherwise, and final judgments
may exceed the level of spending authorized by majority vote of the Council.

An annual budget is adopted for the general fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. The original
2015 approved budget authorized approximately $122.5 million in appropriations, carryforwards, and other
amounts to be raised. During 2015, the Council aiso approved supplemental appropriations totaling
approximately $8.0 million. The change is primarily due to increases in appropriations for general government,
public safety, human services, employee benefits, capital outlay and debt service.

The City Auditor has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary control is
exercised through the City's accounting system.

2. Budgetary - GAAP Reconciliation

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Municipal Accounting System basis of accounting
(established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting. A
reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund for the year ended June 30, 2015, is
presented below.

Net change in fund balance - budgetary basis.............c.oovevceeceevceens, 8 2,765,964

Perspective difference:
Activity of the stabflization fund recorded in the

general fund for GAAP...... ... e e e e e (544,572)
Basis of accounting differences:
Net change in recording 80-day receipts.............cocce oo ve e cen e, (283,000
Net change in recording tax refunds payable.............co e, {92,317)
Net change in recording accrued payToll..........c...ccocoiiviee i 456,204
Increase in revenues due to on-behalf payments..........ccccecv v et 5,821,247
Increase in expenditures due to on-behalf payments........................ {5,821,247)
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis.............ccooc v 8§ 2,302,369
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information Year Ended June 30, 2015

3. Appropriation Deficits

During 2015, actual expenditures exceeded appropriations for snow and ice removal. This over expenditure
will be funded by the subsequent years tax levy.

NOTE B — PENSION PLAN
Penslon Plan Schedules - Retirement System
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

The Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios includes the detailed changes in the
System's total pension liability, changes in the System’s net position, and the ending net pension liability. It also
demonstrates the plan’s net position as a percentage of the total pension liability and the net pension liability as a
percentage of covered payroll.

Since the System performs an actuarial valuation bi-annually, there are no reported amounts for the changes in
benefit terms and differences between expected and actual experience as of December 31, 2014.

Schedule of Contributions

Governmental employers are required to pay an annual appropriation as established by PERAC. The
appropriation includes the amounts to pay the pension portion of each member's retirement allowance, an amount
to amortize the actuarially determined unfunded liability to zero in accordance with the System'’s funding

schedule, and additional appropriations in accordance with adopted early retirement incentive programs. The
appropriations are payable on July 1 and January 1. Employers may choose to pay the entire appropriation in
July at a discounted rate. Accordingly, actual employer contributions may be less than the “fotal appropriation”
The appropriations are allocated amongst employers based on covered payroll.

Schedule of Investment Return

The money-weighted rate of return is calculated as the internal rate of retum on pension plan investments, net of
pension plan investment expense. A money weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of
pension plan investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. Inputs to the money
weighted rate of return calculation are determined monthly.

Changes of Assumptions

The mortality rates applicable to non-disabied participants used for the prior year were based on the RP-2000
Mortality Table with projections specified by IRS Regulation 1.430{h)(3)-1, as applicable to the valuation year
using a combined static table for both annuitants and non-annuitants. The mortality assumption applicable to
non-disabled participants was changed to the RP-2000 Mortality Table projected generationally with Scale BB for
males and females.

Changes in Plan Provisions — None
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Pension Plan Schedules — City

Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

The Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability details the allocated percentage of the
net pension liability (asset), the proportionate share of the net pension fiability, and the covered employee payroll.
It also demonstrates the net position as a percentage of the pension liability and the net pension liability as a
percentage of covered payroll.

Schedule of City's Contributions

Governmental employers are required to pay an annual appropriation as established by PERAC. The
appropriation includes the amounts to pay the pension portion of each member's retirement allowance, an amount
tc amortize the actuarially determined unfunded liability to zero in accordance with the System’s funding
schedule, and additional appropriations in accordance with adopted early retirement incentive programs. The
appropriations are payabie on July 1 and January 1. The City may choose to pay the entire appropriation in July
at a discounted rate. Accordingly, actual contributions may be less than the “total appropriation”.

Scheduie of the Special Funding Amounts of the Net Pension Liabilities

The Commenwealth of Massachusetts is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to make all
actuarially determined employer contributions on behaif of the member employers which creates a special funding
situation. Since the City does not contribute directly to MTRS, there is no net pension liability to recognize. This
schedule discloses the Commonwealth’'s 100% share of the collective net pension liability that is associated with
the City; the portion of the collective pension expense as both revenue and pension expense recognized by the
City; and the Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total liability.

Changes of Assumptions

The mortality rates applicable to non-disabled participants used for the prior year were based on the RP-2000
Mortality Table with projections specified by IRS Reguiation 1.430(h)(3)-1, as applicable to the valuation year
using a combined static table for both annuitants and non-annuitants. The mortality assumption applicable to
non-disabled participants was changed to the RP-2000 Mortality Table projected generationatly with Scale BB for
males and females.

Changes in Plan Provisions — None.

NOTE C — OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (Retiree Health Plan). The plan provides
lifetime healthcare and prescription drug benefits for eligible retirees and their spouses through the City's health
insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members, including teachers.

The City currently finances its other postemployment benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. As a result, the funded
ratio {(actuarial value of assets expressed as a percentage of the actuarial accrued liability) is 0%. In accordance
with Governmental Accounting Standards, the City has recorded its OPEB cost equal to the actuarial determined
annual required contribution (ARC) which inciudes the normal cost of providing benefits for the year and a
component for the amortization of the total unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the plan.
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The Schedule of Funding Progress presents multi-year trend information which compares, over time, the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits with the actuarial value of accumulated plan assets. The Schedule of Employer
Contributicns compares, over time, the annual required contribution with the actual contributions made.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial vatue of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the ealculations.

The Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions presents factors that significantly affect the identification of
trends in the amounts reporied.
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Powers & Sullivan, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

100 Quannapowitt Parkway
Suite 101
Wakefield, MA 01880
T. 781-914-1700
To the Honorable Mayor ¥, SEd -l L
City of Woburn, Massachusetts www.powersandsullivan.com

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts
(City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015 (except for the Woburn Contributory Retirement System which
is as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014), in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as
a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.
-Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

However, during our audit we became aware of several matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal

controls and operating efficiency. The memorandum that accompanies this letter summarizes our comments and
suggestions regarding those matters.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed
these comments and suggestions with various City personnel, and will be pleased to discuss them in further detail
at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing the
recommendations.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management of the City of Woburn,
Massachusetts, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

/mﬂ,f—/ﬁé\%/ Cid,

March 15, 2016
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COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS



GENERAL LEDGER JOURNAL ENTRIES

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we noted that journal entries are generally used to record year-end accruals, to reclassify
transactions and to record non-cash transactions. During our audit, we reviewed several of the general ledger
journal entries and found that the supporting documentation was not always readily available. However, the
supperting documentation was eventually compiled and provided.

It is important to maintain supporting documentation with the journal entries in the event that turnover occurs in a
key financial position or an individual is out of work for an extended period of time. The supporting documentation
may be needed to make an internal decision and may also be needed by an outside agency such as federal, state
or independent auditors. Having supporting documentation readily available and filed numerically with copies of
the journal entries will protect the City in the event that such a situation arises.

Current Status

General ledger journal entries are now filed in a centralized location with supporting documentation attached to
each journal entry.

FRAUD RISK ASSESSMENT

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we indicated that the opportunity to commit and conceal fraud exists where there are assets
susceptible to misappropriation and inadequate controls to prevent or detect the fraud. To address this risk, we
recommended that the City perform a risk assessment to identify, analyze, and manage the risk of asset
misappropriation. Risk assessment, including fraud risk assessment, is one element of internal control. Thus,
ideally, the City's internal control should include performance of this assessment, even though our annual
financial statement audits include consideration of fraud. We recommended that management complete the
development and implementation of a fraud risk assessment program to identify, analyze, and manage the risk of
asset misappropriation.

Current Status

The City Auditor has drafted an anti-fraud policy; however it has not been presented to the City Council for review
and approval. Additionally, the City has not performed a fraud risk assessment.

Continuing Recommendation

We continue to recommend that the City perform a fraud risk assessment to identify, analyze, and manage the
risk of asset misappropriation.

RESOLVE CREDIT REAL ESTATE RECEIVABLE BALANCES

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we indicated that there were several old real estate tax receivable accounts (fiscal 2001 — 2009)
that had credit balances totaling $221,000. As of June 30, 2015, the credit real estate accounts (fiscal 2001 —



2013) totaled $325,000. The Treasurer/Collector believes that the underlying reason for the credit balances
relates to the timeliness in which the City processes taxpayer over-payments. These transactions should be
processed on a timelier basis so that taxpayers are receiving proper credit for their payments and so that the
general ledger is reporting the correct receivable balances.

Current Status

The credit balances increased by $104,000 in fiscal 2015. No significant progress was made to resolve this
matter.

Continuing Recommendation

We continue to recommend that the City investigate these credit balances and implement procedures to prevent
credit receivable balances from occurring in the future. We also recommend that once the cause of the credit
balances is determined that the appropriate action is taken to resolve them.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we indicated that the City's system for tracking and reporting the available sick and vacation
balances is inefficient. The City does not maintain an automated perpetual balance of each employee’s sick and
vacation balance. Therefore, the calculation of this accrual at fiscal year-end (and at any time during the year) is
done manually.

These balances are not only essential in the preparation of the City’s basic financials statements, but they are
essential in attendance control.

Current Status
The City is in the process of updating its payroll software to automatically gather this information. However, this
application was not available for the current year audit and, consequently, the data was required to be compiled

using an excel spreadsheet. The excel spreadsheet was not updated on a timely basis and was not available for
the audit which required the liability to be estimated.

Continuing Recommendation

We encourage the City to continue to pursue its goal of automating the accumulation and reporting of sick and
vacation accruals; however if the goal is not accomplished, the City should implement procedures to ensure that
the liability is calculated and available for the annual audit.

POLICE DETAIL

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we were unable to obtain support for the police detail amount reported in the general ledger. We
also noted that the general ledger balance has not been updated since fiscal 2008. Currently there are no formal
reconciliation procedures between the Police Department and the City Auditor's Office for police detail
receivables. The summary outstanding balance reported in the general ledger should be reconciled each month
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to the detail maintained by the Police Department. Updating and reconciling the general ledger receivable
balance to the subsidiary ledger is an important control that provides a check and balance on the activity posted
to the subsidiary ledger.

Current Status
We were not provided with supporting documentation for the police detail receivable balance reported on the
general ledger. The general ledger receivable balance totaled approximately $417,000 and has not changed

since fiscal 2008.

Continuing Recommendation

We continue recommend that the City Auditor's Office be provided with monthly reports showing the police detail
activity for the period and that the City Auditor updates the general ledger receivable balance to reflect the
monthly activity. Once the activity is recorded, the general ledger receivable balance should be reconciled to the
subsidiary receivable balance maintained by the police department. Any write-offs should be signed-off and
approved at the proper levels of management.

INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we indicated that the general fund provides services and pays for certain fringe benefits for its
enterprise operations. It is sound business practice to complete a cost allocation plan to charge the enterprise
funds for their share of these costs. If a properly approved and supported cost allocation plan is not used to
calculate these charges, then the City is at risk that the enterprise funds are not being charged their fair share of
expenses. The City allocates indirect costs based on percentages that have been utilized for several years. Itis
good business practice to periodically review indirect cost allocations to ensure that the rates being applied are
still applicable to the current situation.

Current Status

The City has not analyzed its cost allocation plan in several years to ensure that the rates being applied are still
applicable.

Continuing Recommendation

We continue to recommend that the City develop a cost allocation plan that identifies all fringe benefits and
overhead departments that support each enterprise fund. The plan should include:

e Direct and indirect charges used to calculate the allocable cost of the overhead department.

¢ The appropriate base to allocate the specific cost.

¢ Identifying costs that can use actual direct charges for specific expenses.

e A required year-end reconciliation of the estimated budget allocation to the actual results of operations.



INFORMATIONAL COMMENT



FUTURE GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (GASB) STATEMENTS FOR OTHER
POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Informational Comment

The GASB has issued new pronouncements that will significantly affect the accounting and reporting
requirements for Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB). These new standards will start to phase in during
2017 and will substantially impact the City’s financial statements and will also affect the requirements for
accumulating the necessary data to meet the reporting requirements.

The new standards that have been issued and their effective dates are as follows:

» The GASB issued Statement #74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than
Pensions, which is required to be implemented in 2017.

s The GASB issued Statement #75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions, which is required to be implemented in 2018.

See below for a brief summary of these new standards:

e GASB #74 and #75 will substantially change the reporting for other postemployment benefit liabilities and
expenses. Changes in other postemployment benefit liability will be immediately recognized as other
postemployment benefit expense or reported as deferred outflows/inflows of resources depending on the
nature of the changes. Substantial changes to methods and assumptions used to determine actuarial
information for GAAP reporting purposes will be required. Employers will report in their financial
statements a net other postemployment benefit liability (asset) determined annually as of the
measurement date. Net other postemployment benefit liability (asset) equals the fotal other
postemployment benefit liability for the plan net of the plan net position. The other postemployment
benefit liability is the actuarial present value of projected benefits attributed to past service. The plan net
position is the accumulated plan assets net of any financial statement liabilities of the plan.

The City should expect to record significant OPEB liabilities in the future. While these GASB's do not go into
effect until 2017, we wanted to make the City aware of the impact that these new standards will have on financial
statement reporting and disclosures.
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